Castle Brands Inc Form 424B5 November 15, 2013

Filed Pursuant to Rule 424(b)(5)

Registration Number 333-176005

Prospectus Supplement

(To Prospectus dated August 12, 2011)

CASTLE BRANDS INC.

\$6,000,000

Common Stock

This prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus relate to the offer and sale from time to time by Castle Brands Inc. of up to \$6,000,000 of our common stock. Our common stock will be offered over a period of time and from time to time through or to Barrington Research Associates, Inc. ("Barrington"), acting as our sales agent or principal, in accordance with the terms of the equity distribution agreement we have entered into with Barrington.

Our common stock is listed on the NYSE MKT LLC ("NYSE MKT") under the symbol "ROX." On November 13, 2013, the last reported sales price of our common stock was \$0.92 per share.

Sales of our common stock, if any, under this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus may be made in sales deemed to be "at-the-market" equity offerings as defined in Rule 415 promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), including sales made directly on or through the NYSE MKT, sales made to or through a market maker other than on an exchange or otherwise, in negotiated transactions at market prices prevailing at the time of sale or at prices related to such prevailing market prices, and/or any other method permitted by law. There is no arrangement for funds to be received in any escrow, trust or similar arrangement.

Barrington will be entitled to compensation at a fixed commission rate of 2.0% of the gross proceeds from the sale of common stock through it as sales agent under the equity distribution agreement. Under the equity distribution agreement, we may also sell shares of common stock to Barrington, as principal for its own account, at a price to be agreed upon at the time of sale.

In connection with the sale of the common stock on our behalf, Barrington may be deemed to be an "underwriter" within the meaning of the Securities Act, and the compensation of Barrington may be deemed to be underwriting commissions or discounts.

As of November 13, 2013, the aggregate market value of our common stock held by non-affiliates was approximately \$38,503,121 based on 111,641,415 shares of outstanding common stock, excluding 69,790,196 shares held by affiliates, and a price of \$0.92 per share, which was the last reported sale price of our common stock as quoted on NYSE MKT on that date. We have not offered any securities pursuant to General Instruction I.B.6 of Form S-3 during the prior 12 month calendar period that ends on, and includes, the date of this prospectus supplement.

Investing in our securities involves a high degree of risk. Before making an investment decision, please read the information contained in or incorporated by reference under the heading "Risk Factors" beginning on page S-6 of this prospectus supplement, on page 3 of the accompanying prospectus and in the other documents incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of these securities or passed upon the adequacy or accuracy of this prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectus. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

BARRINGTON RESEARCH ASSOCIATES

Prospectus supplement dated November 14, 2013

Table of Contents

You should rely only on the information contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus. We have not authorized anyone to provide you with different or additional information from that contained in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus or to make representations as to matters not stated in this supplement and the accompanying prospectus. We are not offering to sell, or seeking offers to buy, shares of our common stock in any jurisdiction where such offer or sale is not permitted. You should not assume that the information contained in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus and the documents incorporated by reference herein and therein is accurate as of any date other than their respective dates, regardless of the time of delivery of this prospectus or of any sale of our common stock. Our business, financial condition, liquidity, results of operations and prospects may have changed since those dates.

Prospectus Supplement

	Page No.
ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT	S-1
SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS	S-2
SUMMARY	S-4
THE OFFERING	S-5
RISK FACTORS	S-6
DILUTION	S-7
USE OF PROCEEDS	S-8
PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION	S-9
LEGAL MATTERS	S-10
EXPERTS	S-10
WHERE YOU CAN FIND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION	S-10
INCORPORATION OF CERTAIN DOCUMENTS BY REFERENCE	S-10

Prospectus

	Page No.
SUMMARY	1
RISK FACTORS	3
CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS	10

USE OF PROCEEDS	11
SELLING SECURITYHOLDERS	12
DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK	16
DESCRIPTION OF WARRANTS	20
PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION	21
LEGAL MATTERS	23
EXPERTS	23
PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENTS	23
WHERE YOU CAN FIND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION	24
INCORPORATION OF CERTAIN DOCUMENTS BY REFERENCE	24

ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT

This prospectus supplement is a supplement to the accompanying prospectus that is also a part of this document. This prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus are part of a registration statement on Form S-3 that we filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") using a "shelf" registration process. This prospectus supplement contains specific information about us and the terms on which we are offering and selling shares of our common stock. To the extent that any statement made in this prospectus supplement is inconsistent with statements made in the accompanying prospectus, the statements made in the prospectus will be deemed modified or superseded by those made in this prospectus supplement. Before you purchase shares of our common stock, you should carefully read this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus and the registration statement, together with the documents incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus, and any free writing prospectus that we have authorized for use in connection with this offering.

You should rely on the information contained in or incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus and in any free writing prospectus that we have authorized for use in connection with this offering. We have not, and Barrington has not, authorized anyone to provide you with different information. We are not, and Barrington is not, making an offer to sell these securities in any jurisdiction where the offer or sale is not permitted. You should assume that the information contained in this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus, the documents incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus, and any free writing prospectus that we have authorized for use in connection with this offering, is accurate only as of the respective dates of those documents. Our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects may have changed since those dates. You should also read and consider the information in the documents to which we refer to you in the sections of this prospectus supplement entitled "Where You Can Find Additional Information" and "Incorporation of Certain Documents by Reference."

We further note that the representations, warranties and covenants made by us in any agreement that is filed as an exhibit to any document that is incorporated by reference in the accompanying prospectus were made solely for the benefit of the parties to such agreement, including, in some cases, for the purpose of allocating risk among the parties to such agreements, and should not be deemed to be a representation, warranty or covenant to you. Moreover, such representations, warranties or covenants were accurate only as of the date when made. Accordingly, such representations, warranties and covenants should not be relied on as accurately representing the current state of our affairs.

Unless otherwise indicated or the context otherwise requires, the terms "we," "us," "our," the "Company," "Castle" and similar terms refer to Castle Brands Inc., a Florida corporation, and its consolidated subsidiaries, unless we state otherwise or the context indicates otherwise.

SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain matters discussed in this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus, the information incorporated by reference herein and therein and any free writing prospectus that we have authorized for use in connection with this offering contain "forward-looking statements" within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act. In some cases, you can identify these forward-looking statements by the use of words such as "may," "will," "should," "anticipates," "believes," "expects," "plans," "intends," "could," "estimate," "predict," "potential," "continue," or the negative of these terms or other similar expressions. T forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance. These forward-looking statements are made based on expectations and beliefs concerning future events affecting us and are subject to uncertainties, risks and factors relating to our operations and business environments, all of which are difficult to predict and many of which are beyond our control, that could cause our actual results to differ materially from those matters expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements. These risks and other factors include those listed under "Risk Factors" beginning on page S-6 of this prospectus supplement and as follows:

recent worldwide and domestic economic trends and financial market conditions could adversely impact our financial performance;

our history of losses;

our potential need for additional capital, which, if not available on acceptable terms or at all, could restrict our future growth and severely limit our operations;

our brands could fail to achieve more widespread consumer acceptance, which may limit our growth; our dependence on a limited number of suppliers, who may not perform satisfactorily or may end their relationships with us, which could result in lost sales, incurrence of additional costs or lost credibility in the marketplace;

our annual purchase obligations with certain suppliers;

the failure of even a few of our independent wholesale distributors to adequately distribute our products within their territories could harm our sales and result in a decline in our results of operations;

the possibility that we cannot secure and maintain listings in control states, which could cause the sales of our products to decrease significantly;

the potential limitation to our growth if we are unable to identify and successfully acquire additional brands that are complementary to our existing portfolio, or integrate such brands after acquisitions;

currency exchange rate fluctuations and devaluations may significantly adversely affect our revenues, sales, costs of goods and overall financial results;

our need to maintain a relatively large inventory of our products to support customer delivery requirements, which could negatively impact our operations if such inventory is lost due to theft, fire or other damage;

the possibility that we or our strategic partners will fail to protect our respective trademarks and trade secrets, which could compromise our competitive position and decrease the value of our brand portfolio;

an impairment in the carrying value of our goodwill or other acquired intangible assets could negatively affect our operating results and shareholders' equity;

changes in consumer preferences and trends could adversely affect demand for our products; there is substantial competition in our industry and the many factors that may prevent us from competing successfully;

· adverse changes in public opinion about alcohol could reduce demand for our products; class action or other litigation relating to alcohol misuse or abuse could adversely affect our business;

adverse regulatory decisions and legal, regulatory or tax changes could limit our business activities, increase our operating costs and reduce our margins;

• product liability or other related liabilities could increase our costs of operation and harm our reputation; if our products are contaminated, counterfeited or subject to competition from confusingly similar products, our brands could lose consumer support and suffer damage to their image, resulting in decreased sales;

if we are unable to maintain our listing on the NYSE MKT, our shareholders may have difficulty selling their common stock;

our executive officers, directors and principal shareholders own a substantial percentage of our voting stock and may act by written consent, which allows them to control matters requiring shareholder approval, and they may make decisions that cause our stock price to decline;

our articles of incorporation, bylaws and Florida law contain provisions that may make it more difficult for a third party to acquire us, discouraging a takeover and potentially adversely affecting our existing shareholders; and our shareholders may experience dilution as a result of the conversion of our Series A preferred stock, accrued dividends on such Series A preferred stock and convertible debt, the exercise of options and warrants to purchase our common stock, or due to anti-dilution provisions relating to any of the foregoing.

Except for ongoing obligations to disclose material information as required by federal securities laws, we undertake no obligation to publicly release any revisions to any forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date hereof or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events. All of the above factors are difficult to predict, contain uncertainties that may materially affect our actual results and may be beyond our control. New factors emerge from time to time, and it is not possible for our management to predict all such factors or to assess the effect of each factor on our business.

Although we believe that the assumptions underlying the forward-looking statements contained or incorporated by reference herein are reasonable, any of the assumptions could be inaccurate, and therefore any of these statements included in this prospectus supplement or in the documents incorporated by reference herein may prove to be inaccurate. In light of the significant uncertainties inherent in the forward-looking statements included in this prospectus supplement, the inclusion of this information should not be regarded as a representation by us or by any other person that the results or conditions described in such statements or our objectives and plans will be achieved.

S-3

SUMMARY

This summary highlights the material information contained in this prospectus supplement. This summary is not complete and does not contain all of the information that you should consider before investing in our common stock. For a more complete understanding of our company and this offering, we encourage you to read and consider carefully the more detailed information in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus, including the information incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus, and the information included in any free writing prospectus that we have authorized for use in connection with this offering, including the information contained in and incorporated by reference under the heading "Risk Factors" in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended March 31, 2013 and beginning on page S-6 of this prospectus supplement, and under similar headings in the other documents that are filed after the date hereof and incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement.

Our Company

We develop and market premium brands in the following beverage alcohol categories: rum, whiskey, liqueurs, vodka and tequila. We distribute our products in all 50 U.S. states and the District of Columbia, in thirteen primary international markets, including Ireland, Great Britain, Northern Ireland, Germany, Canada, South Africa, Bulgaria, France, Russia, Finland, Norway, Sweden, China and the Duty Free markets, and in a number of other countries in continental Europe and Latin America. We market the following brands, among others: Gosling's Rum®, Gosling's Stormy Ginger Beer, Gosling's Dark 'n Stormy® ready-to-drink cocktail, Jefferson's®, Jefferson's Reserve® and Jefferson's Presidential Select™ bourbons, Jefferson's Rye whiskey, Pallini® liqueurs, Clontarf® Irish whiskey, Knappogue Castle Whiskey®, Brady's® Irish Cream, Boru® vodka, TierrasTM tequila, Celtic Honey® liqueur, Castello MioTM sambucas, Travis Hasse's Original® Pie liqueurs and Gozio® amaretto.

We were incorporated in Florida in 2009 and are the successor to Castle Brands Inc., a Delaware corporation, which was incorporated in Delaware in 2003.

We maintain our principal executive office at 122 East 42nd Street, Suite 4700, New York, New York 10168. Our phone number is (646) 356-0200. We maintain a corporate website at www.castlebrandsinc.com. The contents of our website are not a part of this prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectus. The information on our website is not intended to form a part of or be incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectus.

Recent Developments

Private Placement of 5% Subordinated Convertible Notes

On October 31, 2013, we completed a private placement of \$2,125,000 initial aggregate principal of our 5% Convertible Subordinated Notes due 2018 (the "Convertible Notes"). The Convertible Notes bear interest at a rate of 5% per annum, payable quarterly beginning on December 15, 2013 until their maturity date of December 15, 2018. The Convertible Notes and accrued but unpaid interest thereon are convertible in whole or in part from time to time at the option of the holders thereof into shares of our common stock at a conversion price of \$0.90 per share and may be prepaid in whole or in part at any time without penalty or premium, but with payment of accrued interest to the date of prepayment.

The purchasers of Convertible Notes included certain related parties of our company, including an affiliate of Dr. Phillip Frost (\$500,000), a director and our principal shareholder, Mark E. Andrews, III (\$50,000), a director and our Chairman, an affiliate of Richard J. Lampen (\$50,000), a director and our President and Chief Executive Officer, an affiliate of Glenn Halpryn (\$200,000), a director, Dennis Scholl (\$100,000), a director, and Vector Group Ltd. (\$200,000), a more than 5% shareholder, of which Richard Lampen is an executive officer and Henry Beinstein, a director of ours, is also a director.

We may forcibly convert all or any part of the Convertible Notes and all accrued but unpaid interest thereon if (i) the average daily volume of our common stock exceeds \$50,000 per trading day and (ii) the volume weighted average price of our common stock for at least 20 trading days during any 30 consecutive trading day period exceeds 250% of the conversion price.

We intend to use a portion of the proceeds of the Convertible Notes to finance the acquisition of additional bourbon inventory in support of the growth of our Jefferson's bourbon brand.

S-4

THE OFFERING

Issuer

Castle Brands Inc.

Securities offered

Shares of our common stock having an aggregate offering price of up to \$6,000,000.

stock to be outstanding after this offering $^{(1)}$

Shares of common 118,163,154 shares, assuming the sale of 6,521,739 shares at a price of \$0.92 per share, which was the closing price of our common stock on the NYSE MKT on November 13, 2013. The actual number of shares issued in this offering will vary depending on the sales price under this offering.

Manner of offering

"At-the-market" offering that may be made from time to time through Barrington as our sales agent or principal. See "Plan of Distribution" on page S-9.

Use of proceeds

We intend to use the net proceeds we receive from the sale of common stock offered by this prospectus supplement for working capital and general corporate purposes, including investing in the growth of our more profitable brands, such as Gosling's rum and ginger beer and Jefferson's bourbons and rye, and acquiring a dedicated supply source for future bourbon needs. Pending such usage, we intend to use the net proceeds to reduce the outstanding balance under our revolving credit facility with Keltic Financial Partners II, LP, from which we may subsequently re-borrow. See "Use of Proceeds" on page S-8 of this prospectus supplement.

Risk factors

Investing in our securities involves a high degree of risk. Before making an investment decision, you should read the information contained in or incorporated by reference under the heading "Risk Factors" beginning on page S-6 of this prospectus supplement, on page 3 of the accompanying prospectus and in the other documents incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement.

NYSE MKT symbol

ROX

The number of shares outstanding immediately following the offering is based on 111,641,415 shares of our (1) common stock outstanding as of November 13, 2013.

RISK FACTORS

Investing in our common stock involves a high degree of risk. Before purchasing our securities, you should carefully consider the risks and uncertainties set forth below and under the heading "Risk Factors" in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended March 31, 2013, as filed with the SEC on July 1, 2013, as updated or superseded by the risks and uncertainties described under similar headings in the other documents that are filed after the date hereof and incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement, together with the other information in this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus, the information and documents incorporated by reference, and in any free writing prospectus prepared by or on behalf of us or to which we have referred you. Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to us or that we currently deem immaterial may also affect us. If any of those risks actually occur, our financial condition, operating results and prospects, as well as the value of our common stock, could be materially adversely affected.

Additional Risks Related to this Offering and our Common Stock

You may experience dilution.

Giving effect to the issuance of common stock in this offering, the receipt of the expected net proceeds and the use of those proceeds, this offering may have a dilutive effect on our expected net income available to our common shareholders per share. The actual amount of dilution cannot be determined at this time and will be based on a number of factors. Also, we are not restricted from issuing additional securities in the future, including shares of common stock, securities that are convertible into or exchangeable for, or that represent the right to receive, common stock or substantially similar securities. The price per share at which we sell additional shares of our common stock, or securities convertible or exchangeable into common stock, in future transactions may be higher or lower than the price per share paid by investors in this offering and investors purchasing shares or other securities in the future could have rights superior to existing shareholders. The issuance of these securities may cause further dilution to our shareholders.

The price of our common stock has been and may continue to be highly volatile, which may make it difficult for shareholders to sell our common stock when desired or at attractive prices.

The market price of our common stock has fluctuated in the past and is likely to fluctuate in the future. During the twelve months ended November 13, 2013, the sale price of our common stock on the NYSE MKT has ranged from a high of \$0.99 to a low of \$0.25. The following factors could cause the price of our common stock in the public market to continue to fluctuate significantly:

actual or anticipated variations in our quarterly results of operations;
· changes in market valuations of companies in the beverage alcohol industry;
· changes in expectations of future financial performance or changes in estimates of securities analysts;
fluctuations in stock market prices and volumes;
· issuances of common stock or our other securities in the future;
the addition or departure of key personnel; and
· announcements by us or our competitors of acquisitions, investments or strategic alliances.
ales of a substantial number of shares of our common stock, or the perception that such sales might occur, could Iversely affect the trading price of our common stock.

As of November 13, 2013, we had 111,641,415 shares of our common stock outstanding. Also, we had, as of November 13, 2013, 49,558,650 shares of our common stock issuable upon the exercise of outstanding options and warrants and the conversion of outstanding Series A preferred stock and related accrued dividends and convertible debt. If this offering is completed, the number of shares of common stock that we have outstanding will increase. Sales of a substantial number of shares of our common stock, or the perception that such sales might occur, could adversely affect the trading price of our common stock. Further, sales of shares underlying stock options and common stock purchase warrants, or the perception in the market that the holders of a large number of shares intend to sell shares, could reduce the market price of our common stock.

S-6

DILUTION

Our net tangible book value as of September 30, 2013 was approximately \$(1,000,000), or \$(0.01) per share of our common stock, based upon 136,609,050 shares of our common stock outstanding as of that date, which includes 25,352,339 shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of our outstanding Series A preferred stock and related accrued dividends. Net tangible book value per share is determined by dividing our total tangible assets, less total liabilities, by the number of shares of our common stock outstanding as of September 30, 2013.

Dilution per share to new investors in this offering represents the difference between the amount per share paid by purchasers of shares of common stock in this offering and the net tangible book value per share of our common stock immediately after this offering. After giving effect to the assumed sale of 6,521,739 shares of our common stock in this offering at a price of \$0.92 per share, which was the closing price of our common stock on the NYSE MKT on November 13, 2013, and after deducting the commissions and estimated offering expenses payable by us, our as adjusted net tangible book value as of September 30, 2013 would have been approximately \$4,827,397, or \$0.03 per share. This amount represents an immediate increase in net tangible book value of \$0.04 per share to existing shareholders and immediate dilution in net tangible book value of \$0.89 per share to new investors purchasing our common stock in this offering, assuming sales at a price of \$0.92 per share. The following table illustrates this dilution on a per share basis:

Assumed offering price per share of common stock	\$0.92
Net tangible book value per share of common stock as of September 30, 2013	\$(0.01)
Increase in net tangible book value per share of common stock attributable to this offering	\$0.04
Adjusted net tangible book value per share of common stock as of September 30, 2013 after giving	\$0.03
effect to this offering	\$0.03
Dilution in net tangible book value per share to new investors	\$0.89

The foregoing discussion excludes 11,095,139 shares of our common stock issuable upon the exercise of warrants outstanding as of September 30, 2013, having a weighted-average exercise price of \$0.46 per share, and 11,134,765 shares of our common stock issuable upon the exercise of outstanding stock options under our equity incentive plans, which have a weighted-average exercise price of \$0.57 per share.

In addition, we may choose to raise additional capital due to market conditions or strategic considerations even if we believe we have sufficient funds for our current or future operating plans. To the extent that additional capital is raised through the sale of equity or convertible debt securities, the issuance of these securities could result in further dilution to our stockholders. See "Risk Factors— You may experience dilution" on page S-6.

USE OF PROCEEDS

We intend to use the net proceeds we receive from the sale of common stock offered by this prospectus supplement for working capital and general corporate purposes, including investing in the growth of our more profitable brands, such as Gosling's rum and ginger beer and Jefferson's bourbons and rye, and acquiring a dedicated supply source for future bourbon needs. Pending such usage, we intend to use the net proceeds to reduce the outstanding balance under our \$8,000,000 revolving credit facility with Keltic Financial Partners II, LP, from which we may subsequently re-borrow. The revolving credit facility matures on December 31, 2016 and, as of November 13, 2013, bears interest at rate of 6.5% per annum. As of November 13, 2013 we had approximately \$6,700,000 outstanding under the facility.

S-8

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

We have entered into an equity distribution agreement (the "Distribution Agreement"), dated as of November 14, 2013, with Barrington under which we may, from time to time, offer and sell our common stock having aggregate sales proceeds of up to \$6,000,000 through Barrington, or to Barrington, for resale. Sales of our common stock through Barrington, if any, will be made by means of ordinary brokers' transactions on the NYSE MKT or otherwise at market prices prevailing at the time of sale, in block transactions, or as otherwise agreed upon by us. Barrington will not engage in any transactions that stabilize the price of our common stock.

Barrington will use its commercially reasonable efforts to sell the common stock offered hereby, from time to time, based upon instructions from us (including any price, time or size limits or other customary parameters or conditions we may impose). Barrington's obligations under the Distribution Agreement to sell our common stock are subject to a number of conditions that we must meet. We or Barrington may suspend the offering of common stock upon proper notice and subject to other conditions.

Barrington has agreed to provide written confirmation of any sales to us no later than the opening of the trading day on the NYSE MKT following the trading day on which shares of common stock were sold under the Distribution Agreement. Each confirmation will include the number of shares sold on the preceding day, the net proceeds to us and the compensation payable by us to Barrington in connection with the sales.

We will pay Barrington commissions for their services in acting as agent in the sale of common stock offered hereby. Under the Distribution Agreement, Barrington will be entitled to compensation of 2.0% of the gross sales price of all shares sold through them as our agent. Also, we have agreed to reimburse Barrington their reasonable documented out-of-pocket expenses incurred by them in connection with the transactions and other matters contemplated under the Distribution Agreement, up to an aggregate of \$50,000, plus up to an additional \$7,500 per calendar quarter related to ongoing maintenance and other reasonable documented out-of-pocket expenses associated therewith; provided, however, that in no event will we be liable for any such reimbursable expenses in excess of 8.0% of the aggregate gross proceeds expected to be received by us through this offering. Assuming all of our common stock in the aggregate amount of \$6,000,000 is sold through this offering, we expect our aggregate expenses in connection with the offering, excluding commissions or discounts to Barrington, to be approximately \$150,000.

If we sell common stock to Barrington, acting as a principal, we will set forth the terms of such transactions in the applicable placement notice and, to the extent required by applicable law, we will describe these terms in a separate prospectus supplement or pricing supplement.

Settlement of sales of common stock will occur on the third trading day following the date on which any sales are made, or on some other date that is agreed upon by us and Barrington in connection with a particular transaction, in return for payment of the net proceeds to us. There is no arrangement for funds to be received in an escrow, trust or similar arrangement. Sales of common stock, if any, as contemplated by this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus will be settled through the facilities of DTC or by such other means as we and Barrington may agree upon.

We will report at least quarterly the number of shares of common stock sold through Barrington under the Distribution Agreement, the net proceeds to us and the compensation paid by us to Barrington in connection with the sales, if any.

Barrington and its affiliates may in the future provide various investment banking and advisory services for us from time to time for which they may in the future receive customary fees and expenses. Barrington and its affiliates may, from time to time, engage in other transactions with and perform services for us in the ordinary course of their business.

In connection with the sale of our common stock, Barrington may be deemed to be an "underwriter" within the meaning of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Act, and the compensation paid to Barrington may be deemed to be underwriting commissions or discounts. We have agreed to provide indemnification and contribution to Barrington against certain civil liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act. Barrington may engage in transactions with, or perform other services for, us in the ordinary course of its business. In compliance with the guidelines of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, or FINRA, the maximum discount or commission to be received by any FINRA member or independent broker-dealer may not exceed 8.0% of the aggregate offering price of the shares offered hereby.

The offering of common stock pursuant to the Distribution Agreement will terminate upon the earlier of (1) the sale of all the common stock subject to the Distribution Agreement or (2) termination of the Distribution Agreement. The Distribution Agreement may be terminated by Barrington or us, each in its sole discretion, at any time by giving notice to the other party.

S-9

LEGAL MATTERS

Certain legal matters will be passed upon for us by Greenberg Traurig, P.A., Miami, Florida. Barrington is being represented in connection with this offering by Lowenstein Sandler LLP, New York, New York.

EXPERTS

EisnerAmper LLP (formerly Eisner LLP), an independent registered public accounting firm, has audited our consolidated financial statements incorporated in this prospectus supplement by reference to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended March 31, 2013. Our consolidated financial statements have been so incorporated in reliance on the report of EisnerAmper LLP (formerly Eisner LLP), given on the authority of said firm as experts in accounting and auditing.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

We file annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC. Our SEC filings are available to the public over the Internet at the SEC's web site at http://www.sec.gov. You may also read and copy any document we file at the SEC's public reference room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information about the public reference room. Our SEC filings are also available at http://www.castlebrandsinc.com. The contents of our website are not a part of this prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectus. The information on our website is not intended to form a part of or be incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectus.

INCORPORATION OF CERTAIN DOCUMENTS BY REFERENCE

The SEC allows us to "incorporate by reference" the information we file with it, which means that we can disclose important information to you by referring you to those documents. Any statement contained in a document incorporated by reference herein shall be deemed to be modified or superseded for purposes of this prospectus supplement to the extent that a statement contained herein modifies or supersedes such statement. Any statement so modified or superseded shall not be deemed, except as so modified or superseded, to constitute a part of this prospectus supplement. Any information that we file after the date of this prospectus supplement with the SEC will automatically update and supersede the information contained in this prospectus supplement. This prospectus supplement incorporates by reference our documents listed below and any future filings we make with the SEC under Sections 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act (not including any information furnished under Item 2.02, 7.01

or 9.01 of Form 8-K and any other information that is identified as "furnished" rather than filed, which information is not incorporated by reference herein) until the termination of the offering of shares hereby.

We incorporate by reference the following documents that we previously filed with the SEC pursuant to the Exchange Act:

our annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013, filed with the SEC on July 1, 2013, as amended on July 29, 2013;

our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q for the quarters ended June 30, 2013 and September 30, 2013, filed with the SEC on August 14, 2013 and November 12, 2013, respectively;

our current reports on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 13, 2013, August 9, 2013, October 25, 2013 and November 1, 2013; and

the description of our common stock contained in our registration statement on Form S-3 (Commission File No. ·333-176005) filed with the SEC on August 3, 2011 and any amendments to such registration statement filed subsequently thereto, including any amendment or report filed for the purpose of updating such description.

We will provide without charge to each person, including any shareholder, to whom this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus supplement are delivered, upon written or oral request of that person, a copy of any and all of the information that has been incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus (excluding exhibits unless specifically incorporated by reference into those documents). Requests should be directed to Castle Brands Inc., Attention: Investor Relations, 122 East 42nd Street, Suite 4700, New York, New York 10168 or by telephone at (646) 356-0200.

S-10

P	R	O	S	P	E	\mathbb{C}^r	Γ	IJ	S
	1/	v	v.			u .		\mathbf{c}	v

CASTLE BRANDS INC.

Common Stock

Warrants

This prospectus relates to the public offer and sale from time to time together, separately or as units, of common stock and warrants in amounts, at prices, and on other terms to be determined at the time of sale, up to an aggregate amount of \$10.0 million, referred to as the shelf securities. In addition, this prospectus relates to 42,923,765 shares of our common stock, referred to as the resale shares, that may be offered for resale for the account of the selling securityholders set forth in this prospectus under the heading "Selling Securityholders" beginning on page 12. All of the resale shares are issuable, or may in the future become issuable, in connection with the private placement of approximately 7,127 shares of our 10% Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, referred to as the Series A preferred stock or preferred stock, and approximately 11.7 million common stock purchase warrants, referred to as the June 2011 warrants, that we entered into in June 2011, referred to as the June 2011 financing, which is more fully described in the section entitled "Summary." We may offer and sell the shelf securities, and the selling securityholders may offer and sell the resale shares, separately, together or as units, in separate classes or series, in amounts, at prices and on terms to be determined at the time of sale and set forth in a supplement to this prospectus. You should read this prospectus, the applicable prospectus supplement and other offering materials carefully before you invest.

We may offer the shelf securities from time to time through public or private transactions, and in the case of our common stock, on or off the NYSE Amex, at prevailing market prices or at privately negotiated prices. Sales may be made directly to purchasers or to or through agents, broker-dealers or underwriters. If any agents or underwriters are involved in the sale of any of these securities, the applicable prospectus supplement will set forth the names of the agents or underwriters and any applicable fees, commissions or discounts. Our net proceeds from the sale of shelf securities will also be set forth in the applicable prospectus supplement.

The resale shares may only be offered for resale by the selling securityholders pursuant to this prospectus if and when they are actually issued. The resale shares are comprised of the following: (a) approximately 23.4 million shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of our Series A preferred stock, (b) an additional approximately 7.8 million shares of common stock that have been registered pursuant to the registration statement of which this prospectus forms a part to cover resales by the selling securityholders of shares of our common stock which may be issued to them in the future in payment of dividends on the Series A preferred stock, and (c) approximately 11.7 million shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of the June 2011 warrants.

Some or all of the selling securityholders may offer and sell the resale shares in a variety of transactions as described under the heading "Plan of Distribution" beginning on page 21. The price to the public for the shares and the proceeds to the selling securityholders at any time will depend on the terms of such sales.

Our common stock is traded on the NYSE Amex under the symbol "ROX." On July 29, 2011, the last reported sale price of our common stock was \$0.30.

We will not receive any proceeds from the sale of the resale shares covered by this prospectus, but we will receive proceeds from the sale of shelf securities and any cash exercise of the June 2011 warrants. We are bearing all of the expenses in connection with this offering, but all selling and other expenses incurred by the selling securityholders, including commissions and discounts, if any, attributable to the sale or disposition of the resale shares, will be borne by them.

As of July 29, 2011, the aggregate market value of our outstanding common stock held by non-affiliates was approximately \$11,351,870, which was calculated based on 37,839,567 shares of outstanding common stock held by non-affiliates and on a price per share of \$0.30, the closing price of our common stock on July 29, 2011. Pursuant to General Instruction I.B.6 of Form S-3, in no event will we sell the shelf securities in a public primary offering with a value exceeding more than one-third of the aggregate market value of our common stock held by non-affiliates in any 12-month period so long as our market value remains below \$75.0 million. We have not offered any securities pursuant to General Instruction I.B.6 of Form S-3 during the 12 calendar months prior to and including the date of this prospectus.

Investing in our securities involves a high degree of risk. See "Risk Factors" beginning on page 3 for a discussion of information that should be considered in connection with an investment in our common stock.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of these securities or passed upon the adequacy or accuracy of this prospectus. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

The date of this prospectus is August 12, 2011

You should rely only on the information contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus. We have not authorized anyone to provide you with different or additional information from that contained in this prospectus or to make representations as to matters not stated in this prospectus. We and the selling securityholders are offering to sell, and seeking offers to buy, shares of common stock only in jurisdictions where offers and sales are permitted or legal. You should not assume that the information contained in this prospectus and the documents incorporated by reference herein is accurate as of any date other than their respective dates, regardless of the time of delivery of this prospectus or of any sale of our common stock. Our business, financial condition, liquidity, results of operations and prospects may have changed since those dates.

Table of Contents

SUMMARY	1
RISK FACTORS	3
CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS	10
USE OF PROCEEDS	11
SELLING SECURITYHOLDERS	12
DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK	16
DESCRIPTION OF WARRANTS	20
PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION	21
LEGAL MATTERS	23
EXPERTS	23
PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENTS	23
WHERE YOU CAN FIND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION	24
INCORPORATION OF CERTAIN DOCUMENTS BY REFERENCE	24

i

ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS

This prospectus is part of a "shelf" registration statement that we filed with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission, or the SEC. By using a shelf registration statement, we may sell any combination of the shelf securities described in this prospectus from time to time together, separately or as units, of common stock and warrants in amounts, at prices, and on other terms to be determined at the time of sale, up to an aggregate amount of \$10.0 million.

This prospectus only provides you with a general description of the shelf securities we may offer. Each time we sell shelf securities, we will provide a supplement to this prospectus that contains specific information about the terms of the shelf securities offered. The supplement may also add, update or change information contained in this prospectus. Before purchasing any shelf securities, you should carefully read this prospectus, any supplement and any free writing prospectus related to the applicable shelf securities that is prepared by us or on our behalf or that is otherwise authorized by us, together with the additional information described under the heading "Incorporation of Certain Documents by Reference" found on page 24.

We will not use this prospectus to offer and sell shelf securities unless it is accompanied by a supplement that more fully describes the shelf securities being offered and the terms of the offering.

This prospectus also offers for resale 42,923,765 shares of our common stock. The resale shares may be offered for resale for the account of the selling securityholders set forth in this prospectus under the heading "Selling Securityholders" beginning on page 12. All of the resale shares are issuable, or may in the future become issuable, in connection with the private placement of approximately 7,127 shares of our Series A preferred stock and approximately 11.7 million June 2011 warrants, that we entered into in June 2011, which is more fully described in the section entitled "Summary." The resale shares will be offered for resale pursuant to a prospectus supplement that will set forth additional information regarding the selling securityholders, the plan of distribution and other matters with respect to such offering.

ii

SUMMARY

This summary is not complete and may not contain all of the information that may be important to you. You should read the entire prospectus carefully, as well as the documents incorporated by reference, before making an investment decision.

The Company

We develop and market premium brands in the following beverage alcohol categories: rum, whiskey, liqueurs, vodka, tequila and wine. We distribute our products in all 50 U.S. states and the District of Columbia, in twelve primary international markets, including Ireland, Great Britain, Northern Ireland, Germany, Canada, Bulgaria, France, Russia, Finland, Norway, Sweden, China and the Duty Free markets, and in a number of other countries in continental Europe and Latin America. We market the following brands, among others, Gosling's Rum®, Jefferson's®, Jefferson's Reserve® and Jefferson's Presidential SelectTM bourbons, Clontarf® Irish whiskey, Pallini® liqueurs, Boru® vodka, Knappogue Castle Whiskey®, TierrasTM tequila, Travis Hasse's Original® Pie Liqueurs, A. de Fussigny® Cognacs and Betts & SchollTM wines, including the CC:TM line of wines.

Effective as of February 9, 2010, we completed a reincorporation transaction under which Castle Brands Inc., a Delaware corporation, or Castle Delaware, merged with and into Castle Brands (Florida) Inc., a Florida corporation and wholly-owned subsidiary of Castle Delaware, or Castle Florida, with Castle Florida being the surviving entity, which we refer to as the reincorporation, and being renamed Castle Brands Inc. As a result of the reincorporation, the legal domicile of the surviving entity is now the State of Florida. In the reincorporation, each outstanding share of Castle Delaware common stock, par value \$0.01 per share, was converted into one share of Castle Florida common stock, par value \$0.01 per share.

Castle Florida was incorporated in Florida in 2009 and is the successor to Castle Delaware, which was incorporated in Delaware in 2003.

We maintain our principal executive and management office at 122 East 42nd Street, Suite 4700, New York, New York 10168. Our phone number is (646) 356-0200.

Private Placement

On June 8, 2011 we entered into agreements with the selling securityholders relating to a private placement of an aggregate of approximately \$7.1 million of newly-designated Series A preferred stock. Holders of Series A preferred stock are entitled to receive cumulative dividends at the rate per share (as a percentage of the stated value per share) of 10% per annum, whether or not declared by our board, which are payable in shares of our common stock upon conversion of the Series A preferred stock or upon a liquidation. We completed a private offering with certain selling securityholders of approximately \$2.2 million of Series A preferred stock for its stated value of \$1,000 per share and June 2011 warrants to purchase 50% of the number of shares of our common stock issuable upon conversion of such Series A preferred stock. Subject to adjustment (including dilutive issuances), the Series A preferred stock is convertible into shares of our common stock at a conversion price of \$0.304 per share and the June 2011 warrants have an exercise price of \$0.38 per share.

Also on June 8, 2011, certain selling securityholders who are directors, officers and other affiliates of ours agreed to purchase an aggregate of approximately \$1.0 million of Series A preferred stock and June 2011 warrants on substantially the same terms described above, subject to shareholder approval of such issuance in accordance with the rules and regulations of the NYSE Amex. Pending such shareholder approval, we issued an aggregate of approximately \$1.0 million in promissory notes to these selling securityholders, which notes and accrued but unpaid interest thereon will convert automatically into Series A preferred stock and June 2011 warrants following shareholder approval. These notes bear interest at 10% per annum and mature 18 months from the date of issuance, subject to prior conversion upon shareholder approval. The selling securityholders include Frost Gamma Investments Trust, an entity affiliated with Dr. Phillip Frost, a director and principal shareholder of our company, Mr. Richard Lampen, our chief executive officer and a director of our company, Mr. Mark Andrews, our chairman of the board, and certain of his affiliates, Mr. John Glover, our chief operating officer, and Mr. Alfred Small, our senior vice president, chief financial officer, treasurer and secretary.

1

Also on June 8, 2011, certain selling securityholders who are holders of our outstanding debt, including certain of our directors, officers and other affiliates, agreed to purchase shares of Series A preferred stock and June 2011 warrants in exchange for approximately \$3.6 million aggregate principal amount of our existing debt, which we refer to as the exchange debt, and accrued but unpaid interest thereon, on substantially the same terms described above, subject to shareholder approval of such issuance in accordance with the rules and regulations of the NYSE Amex. The affiliate debt holders include Frost Gamma Investments Trust, Vector Group Ltd., a principal shareholder of ours, Mr. Lampen , Mr. Andrews, Lafferty Ltd., a principal shareholder of our company and IVC Investments, LLLP, an entity affiliated with Mr. Glenn Halpryn, a director of ours, and Betts & Scholl, LLC, an entity affiliated with Mr. Dennis Scholl, a director of ours (who converted principal, but not accrued but unpaid interest thereon).

If we sell or grant any option to purchase or any right to reprice, or otherwise dispose of or issue (or announce any sale, grant or any option to purchase or other disposition), any common stock or common stock equivalents entitling any person to acquire common stock at an effective price per share that is lower than the then conversion price of the Series A preferred stock, the holders of the Series A preferred stock and June 2011 warrants will be entitled to an adjusted conversion price and additional shares of common stock upon the exercise of the June 2011 warrants.

We agreed to register for resale hereunder the shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of the Series A preferred stock, the shares of common stock which may be issued in the future in payment of dividends on the Series A preferred stock and the shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of the June 2011 warrants.

The Offering

Common stock and warrants to be offered by us

Up to \$10.0 million of common stock and warrants in any combination from time to time together, separately or as units, in amounts, at prices, and on other terms to be determined at the time of sale.

Common stock to be offered by the

selling

42,923,765 shares⁽¹⁾

securityholders

Use of proceeds We will not receive any proceeds from the sale of the resale shares covered by this prospectus, but we will receive proceeds from the sale of shelf securities and any cash exercise of the June

2011 warrants. Except as may be otherwise set forth in any prospectus supplement accompanying this prospectus, we will use the net proceeds we receive from sales of shelf securities and the proceeds received from the exercise of the June 2011 warrants, if any, under

which some of the resale shares are issuable, for working capital and other general corporate purposes. Pending these uses, the net proceeds may also be temporarily invested in short-term securities.

NYSE Amex symbol ROX

(1) Includes (a) 23,442,736 shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of our Series A preferred stock, which includes the conversion of accrued but unpaid interest on the exchange debt through September 12, 2011, (b) an additional 7,759,656 shares of common stock that have been registered pursuant to the registration statement of which this prospectus forms a part to cover resales by the selling securityholders of shares of our common stock which may be issued to them in the future in payment of dividends on the Series A preferred stock, and (c) 11,721,373 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of the June 2011 warrants, which include June 2011 warrants to be issued in respect of the conversion of accrued but unpaid interest on the exchange debt through September 12, 2011.

2

RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider all of the material risks described below before you decide to invest in our company. Our business, financial condition or results of operation could be materially adversely affected by any of these risks. The trading price of our common stock could decline because of any one of these risks, and you may lose all or part of your investment.

Risk Factors Relating to Our Business

Recent worldwide and domestic economic trends and financial market conditions could adversely impact our financial performance.

The worldwide and domestic economies have experienced adverse conditions and may be subject to further deterioration for the foreseeable future. We are subject to risks associated with these adverse conditions, including economic slowdown and the disruption, volatility and tightening of credit and capital markets.

This global economic situation could adversely impact our major suppliers, distributors and retailers. The inability of suppliers, distributors or retailers to conduct business or to access liquidity could impact our ability to distribute our products.

There can be no assurance that market conditions will improve in the near future. A prolonged downturn, further worsening or broadening of the adverse conditions in the worldwide and domestic economies could affect consumer spending patterns and purchases of our products, and create or exacerbate credit issues, cash flow issues and other financial hardships for us and for our suppliers, distributors, retailers and consumers. Depending upon their severity and duration, these conditions could have a material adverse impact on our business, liquidity, financial condition and results of operations. We are unable to predict the likely duration and severity of the current disruption in the financial markets and the adverse economic conditions in the United States and other markets.

We have never been profitable, and believe we will continue to incur net losses for the foreseeable future.

We have incurred losses since our inception, including a net loss of \$6.3 million for fiscal 2011, and had an accumulated loss of \$118.4 million as of March 31, 2011. We believe that we will continue to incur net losses for the

foreseeable future as we expect to make continued significant investment in product development and sales and marketing and to incur significant administrative expenses as we seek to grow our brands. We also anticipate that our cash needs will exceed our income from sales for the foreseeable future. Some of our products may never achieve widespread market acceptance and may not generate sales and profits to justify our investment therein. Also, we may find that our expansion plans are more costly than we anticipate and that they do not ultimately result in commensurate increases in our sales, which would further increase our losses. We expect we will continue to experience losses and negative cash flow, some of which could be significant. Results of operations will depend upon numerous factors, some of which are beyond our control, including market acceptance of our products, new product introductions and competition. We incur substantial operating expenses at the corporate level, including costs directly related to being an SEC reporting company.

We may require additional capital, which we may not be able to obtain on acceptable terms. Our inability to raise such capital, as needed, on beneficial terms or at all could restrict our future growth and severely limit our operations.

We have limited capital compared to other companies in our industry. This may limit our operations and growth, including our ability to continue to develop existing brands, service our debt obligations, maintain adequate inventory levels, fund potential acquisitions of new brands, penetrate new markets, attract new customers and enter into new distribution relationships. If we have not generated sufficient cash from operations to finance additional capital needs, we will need to raise additional funds through private or public equity and/or debt financing. We cannot assure you that, if and when needed, additional financing will be available to us on acceptable terms or at all. If additional capital is needed and either unavailable or cost prohibitive, our operations and growth may be limited as we may need to change our business strategy to slow the rate of, or eliminate, our expansion or reduce or curtail our operations. Also, any additional financing we undertake could impose covenants upon us that restrict our operating flexibility, and, if we issue equity securities to raise capital, such as our Series A preferred stock, our existing shareholders may experience dilution and the new securities may have rights, preferences and privileges senior to those of our common stock.

3

If our brands do not achieve more widespread consumer acceptance, our growth may be limited.

Most of our brands are early in their growth cycle and have not achieved global brand recognition. Also, brands we may acquire in the future are unlikely to have established global brand recognition. Accordingly, if consumers do not accept our brands, we will not be able to penetrate our markets and our growth may be limited.

We depend on a limited number of suppliers. Failure to obtain satisfactory performance from our suppliers or loss of our existing suppliers could cause us to lose sales, incur additional costs and lose credibility in the marketplace. We also have annual purchase obligations with certain suppliers.

We depend on a limited number of third-party suppliers for the sourcing of all of our products, including both our own proprietary brands and those we distribute for others. These suppliers consist of third-party distillers, bottlers and producers in the United States, Bermuda, the Caribbean, Australia and Europe. We rely on the owners of Gosling's rum, Pallini liqueurs, A. de Fussigny Cognacs and Tierras tequila to produce their brands for us. For our proprietary products, we may rely on a single supplier to fulfill one or all of the manufacturing functions for a brand. For instance, Royal Nedalco is the sole producer for Boru vodka; Irish Distillers Limited is the sole provider of our single malt, blended and grain Irish whiskeys; Gaelic Heritage Corporation Limited is the sole producer of our Celtic Crossing Irish liqueur; and Terra Limited is not only the sole producer of our Brady's Irish cream liqueur but also the only bottler of our Irish whiskeys. We do not have long-term written agreements with all of our suppliers. Also, if we fail to complete purchases of products ordered annually, certain suppliers have the right to bill us for product not purchased during the period. The termination of our written or oral agreements or an adverse change in the terms of these agreements could have a negative impact on our business. If our suppliers increase their prices, we may not have alternative sources of supply and may not be able to raise the prices of our products to cover all or even a portion of the increased costs. Also, our suppliers' failure to perform satisfactorily or handle increased orders, delays in shipments of products from international suppliers or the loss of our existing suppliers, especially our key suppliers, could cause us to fail to meet orders for our products, lose sales, incur additional costs and/or expose us to product quality issues. In turn, this could cause us to lose credibility in the marketplace and damage our relationships with distributors, ultimately leading to a decline in our business and results of operations. If we are not able to renegotiate these contracts on acceptable terms or find suitable alternatives, our business could be negatively impacted.

We depend on our independent wholesale distributors to distribute our products. The failure or inability of even a few of our distributors to adequately distribute our products within their territories could harm our sales and result in a decline in our results of operations.

We are required by law to use state licensed distributors or, in 18 states known as "control states," state-owned agencies performing this function, to sell our products to retail outlets, including liquor stores, bars, restaurants and national

chains in the United States. We have established relationships for our brands with wholesale distributors in each state; however, failure to maintain those relationships could significantly and adversely affect our business, sales and growth. Over the past decade there has been increasing consolidation, both intrastate and interstate, among distributors. As a result, many states now have only two or three significant distributors. Also, there are several distributors that now control distribution for several states. As a result, if we fail to maintain good relations with a distributor, our products could in some instances be frozen out of one or more markets entirely. The ultimate success of our products also depends in large part on our distributors' ability and desire to distribute our products to our desired U.S. target markets, as we rely significantly on them for product placement and retail store penetration. We have no formal distribution agreements or minimum sales requirements with any of our distributors and they are under no obligation to place our products or market our brands. Moreover, all of them also distribute competitive brands and product lines. We cannot assure you that our U.S. alcohol distributors will continue to purchase our products, commit sufficient time and resources to promote and market our brands and product lines or that they can or will sell them to our desired or targeted markets. If they do not, our sales will be harmed, resulting in a decline in our results of operations.

4

While most of our international markets do not require the use of independent distributors by law, we have chosen to conduct our sales through distributors in all of our markets and, accordingly, we face similar risks to those set forth above with respect to our international distribution. Some of these international markets may have only a limited number of viable distributors.

The sales of our products could decrease significantly if we cannot secure and maintain listings in the control states.

In the control states, the state liquor commissions act in place of distributors and decide which products are to be purchased and offered for sale in their respective states. Products selected for listing must generally reach certain volumes and/or profit levels to maintain their listings. Products are selected for purchase and sale through listing procedures which are generally made available to new products only at periodically scheduled listing interviews. Products not selected for listings can only be purchased by consumers in the applicable control state through special orders, if at all. If, in the future, we are unable to maintain our current listings in the 18 control states, or secure and maintain listings in those states for any additional products we may acquire, sales of our products could decrease significantly.

If we are unable to identify and successfully acquire additional brands that are complementary to our existing portfolio, our growth will be limited, and, even if additional brands are acquired, we may not realize planned benefits due to integration difficulties or other operating issues.

A key component of our growth strategy is the acquisition of additional brands that are complementary to our existing portfolio through acquisitions of such brands or their corporate owners, directly or through mergers, joint ventures, long-term exclusive distribution arrangements and/or other strategic relationships. If we are unable to identify suitable brand candidates and successfully execute our acquisition strategy, our growth will be limited. Also, even if we are successful in acquiring additional brands, we may not be able to achieve or maintain profitability levels that justify our investment in, or realize operating and economic efficiencies or other planned benefits with respect to, those additional brands. The addition of new products or businesses entails numerous risks with respect to integration and other operating issues, any of which could have a detrimental effect on our results of operations and/or the value of our equity. These risks include:

·difficulties in assimilating acquired operations or products;

·unanticipated costs that could materially adversely affect our results of operations;

negative effects on reported results of operations from acquisition related charges and amortization of acquired intangibles;

·diversion of management's attention from other business concerns;

· adverse effects on existing business relationships with suppliers, distributors and retail customers;

·risks of entering new markets or markets in which we have limited prior experience; and

·the potential inability to retain and motivate key employees of acquired businesses.

Also, there are special risks associated with the acquisition of additional brands through joint venture arrangements. While we own a controlling interest in our Gosling-Castle Partners strategic export venture and have operational control of DP Castle Partners, LLC, we may not have the majority interest in, or control of, future joint ventures that we may enter into. There is, therefore, risk that our joint venture partners may at any time have economic, business or legal interests or goals that are inconsistent with our interests or goals or those of the joint venture. There is also risk that our current or future joint venture partners may be unable to meet their economic or other obligations and that we may be required to fulfill those obligations alone.

Our ability to grow through the acquisition of additional brands will also be dependent upon the availability of capital to complete the necessary acquisition arrangements. We intend to finance our brand acquisitions through a combination of our available cash resources, third party financing and, in appropriate circumstances, the further issuance of equity and/or debt securities. Acquiring additional brands could have a significant effect on our financial position, and could cause substantial fluctuations in our quarterly and yearly operating results. Also, acquisitions could result in the recording of significant goodwill and intangible assets on our financial statements, the amortization or impairment of which would reduce reported earnings in subsequent years.

5

Currency exchange rate fluctuations and devaluations may have a significant adverse effect on our revenues, sales and overall financial results.

For fiscal 2011, non-U.S. operations accounted for approximately 12.0% of our revenues. Therefore, gains and losses on the conversion of foreign payments into U.S. dollars could cause fluctuations in our results of operations, and fluctuating exchange rates could cause reduced revenues and/or gross margins from non-U.S. dollar-denominated international sales. Also, for fiscal 2011, Euro denominated sales accounted for approximately 8.1% of our total revenue, so a substantial change in the rate of exchange between the U.S. dollar and the Euro could have a significant adverse affect on our financial results. Our ability to acquire spirits and wine and produce and sell our products at favorable prices will also depend in part on the relative strength of the U.S. dollar. We may not be able to hedge against these risks.

We must maintain a relatively large inventory of our products to support customer delivery requirements, and if this inventory is lost due to theft, fire or other damage or becomes obsolete, our results of operations would be negatively impacted.

We must maintain relatively large inventories to meet customer delivery requirements for our products. We are always at risk of loss of that inventory due to theft, fire or other damage, and any such loss, whether insured against or not, could cause us to fail to meet our orders and harm our sales and operating results. Also, our inventory may become obsolete as we introduce new products, cease to produce old products or modify the design of our products' packaging, which would increase our operating losses and negatively impact our results of operations.

Either our or our strategic partners' failure to protect our respective trademarks and trade secrets could compromise our competitive position and decrease the value of our brand portfolio.

Our business and prospects depend in part on our, and with respect to our agency or joint venture brands, our strategic partners', ability to develop favorable consumer recognition of our brands and trademarks. Although both we and our strategic partners actively apply for registration of our brands and trademarks, they could be imitated in ways that we cannot prevent. Also, we rely on trade secrets and proprietary know-how, concepts and formulas. Our methods of protecting this information may not be adequate. Moreover, we may face claims of misappropriation or infringement of third parties' rights that could interfere with our use of this information. Defending these claims may be costly and, if unsuccessful, may prevent us from continuing to use this proprietary information in the future and result in a judgment or monetary damages being levied against us. We do not maintain non-competition agreements with all of our key personnel or with some of our key suppliers. If competitors independently develop or otherwise obtain access to our or our strategic partners' trade secrets, proprietary know-how or recipes, the appeal, and thus the value, of our brand portfolio could be reduced, negatively impacting our sales and growth potential.

Risks Related to Our Industry

Adverse public opinion about alcohol could reduce demand for our products.

Anti-alcohol groups have, in the past, advocated successfully for more stringent labeling requirements, higher taxes and other regulations designed to discourage alcohol consumption. More restrictive regulations, negative publicity regarding alcohol consumption and/or changes in consumer perceptions of the relative healthfulness or safety of beverage alcohol could decrease sales and consumption of alcohol and thus the demand for our products. This could, in turn, significantly decrease both our revenues and our revenue growth, causing a decline in our results of operations.

Class action or other litigation relating to alcohol abuse or the misuse of alcohol could adversely affect our business.

Our industry faces the possibility of class action or similar litigation alleging that the continued excessive use or abuse of beverage alcohol has caused death or serious health problems. It is also possible that governments could assert that the use of alcohol has significantly increased government funded health care costs. Litigation or assertions of this type have adversely affected companies in the tobacco industry, and it is possible that we, as well as our suppliers, could be named in litigation of this type.

Also, lawsuits have been brought in a number of states alleging that beverage alcohol manufacturers and marketers have improperly targeted underage consumers in their advertising. Plaintiffs in these cases allege that the defendants' advertisements, marketing and promotions violate the consumer protection or deceptive trade practices statutes in each of these states and seek repayment of the family funds expended by the underage consumers. While we have not been named in these lawsuits, it is possible we could be named in similar lawsuits in the future. Any class action or other litigation asserted against us could be expensive and time consuming to defend against, depleting our cash and diverting our personnel resources and, if the plaintiffs in such actions were to prevail, our business could be harmed significantly.

Regulatory decisions and legal, regulatory and tax changes could limit our business activities, increase our operating costs and reduce our margins.

Our business is subject to extensive regulation in all of the countries in which we operate. This may include regulations regarding production, distribution, marketing, advertising and labeling of beverage alcohol products. We are required to comply with these regulations and to maintain various permits and licenses. We are also required to conduct business only with holders of licenses to import, warehouse, transport, distribute and sell beverage-alcohol products. We cannot assure you that these and other governmental regulations applicable to our industry will not change or become more stringent. Moreover, because these laws and regulations are subject to interpretation, we may not be able to predict when and to what extent liability may arise. Additionally, due to increasing public concern over alcohol-related societal problems, including driving while intoxicated, underage drinking, alcoholism and health consequences from the abuse of alcohol, various levels of government may seek to impose additional restrictions or limits on advertising or other marketing activities promoting beverage alcohol products. Failure to comply with any of the current or future regulations and requirements relating to our industry and products could result in monetary penalties, suspension or even revocation of our licenses and permits. Costs of compliance with changes in regulations could be significant and could harm our business, as we could find it necessary to raise our prices in order to maintain profit margins, which could lower the demand for our products and reduce our sales and profit potential.

Also, the distribution of beverage alcohol products is subject to extensive taxation both in the United States and internationally (and, in the United States, at both the federal and state government levels), and beverage alcohol products themselves are the subject of national import and excise duties in most countries around the world. An increase in taxation or in import or excise duties could also significantly harm our sales revenue and margins, both through the reduction of overall consumption and by encouraging consumers to switch to lower-taxed categories of beverage alcohol.

We could face product liability or other related liabilities that increase our costs of operations and harm our reputation.

Although we maintain liability insurance and will attempt to limit contractually our liability for damages arising from our products, these measures may not be sufficient for us to successfully avoid or limit liability. Our product liability insurance coverage is limited to \$1.0 million per occurrence and \$2.0 million in the aggregate and our general liability umbrella policy is capped at \$10.0 million. Further, any contractual indemnification and insurance coverage we have from parties supplying our products is limited, as a practical matter, to the creditworthiness of the indemnifying party and the insured limits of any insurance provided by these suppliers. In any event, extensive product liability claims could be costly to defend and/or costly to resolve and could harm our reputation.

Contamination of our products and/or counterfeit or confusingly similar products could harm the image and integrity of, or decrease customer support for, our brands and decrease our sales.

The success of our brands depends upon the positive image that consumers have of them. Contamination, whether arising accidentally or through deliberate third-party action, or other events that harm the integrity or consumer support for our brands, could affect the demand for our products. Contaminants in raw materials purchased from third parties and used in the production of our products or defects in the distillation and fermentation processes could lead to low beverage quality as well as illness among, or injury to, consumers of our products and could result in reduced sales of the affected brand or all of our brands. Also, to the extent that third parties sell products that are either counterfeit versions of our brands or brands that look like our brands, consumers of our brands could confuse our products with products that they consider inferior. This could cause them to refrain from purchasing our brands in the future and in turn could impair our brand equity and adversely affect our sales and operations.

Risk Relating to Owning Our Stock

We may not be able to maintain our listing on the NYSE Amex, which may limit the ability of our shareholders to sell their common stock.

On July 5, 2011, we received a notice from NYSE Amex indicating that we were not in compliance with Section 704 of the NYSE Amex Company Guide in that we did not hold an annual shareholder meeting within one year after our fiscal year ended March 31, 2010. We submitted a plan of compliance to the NYSE Amex and intend to regain compliance with Section 704 of the NYSE Amex Company Guide by holding a meeting of shareholders for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2010 and March 31, 2011 in September 2011, however, our plan has not yet been approved by the NYSE Amex. If we do not meet the NYSE Amex continued listing criteria, we may be delisted and trading of our common stock could be conducted in the OTC Bulletin Board or the interdealer quotation systems of the OTC Markets Group Inc. In such case, a shareholder likely would find it more difficult to trade our common stock or to obtain accurate market quotations for it. If our common stock is delisted, it will become subject to the Securities and Exchange Commission's "penny stock rules," which impose sales practice requirements on broker-dealers that sell that common stock to persons other than established customers and "accredited investors." Application of this rule could make broker-dealers unable or unwilling to sell our common stock and limit the ability of shareholders to sell their common stock in the secondary market.

Our executive officers, directors and principal shareholders own a substantial percentage of our voting stock, which allows them to control matters requiring shareholder approval. They could make business decisions for us that cause our stock price to decline and may act by written consent.

As of July 29, 2011, our executive officers, directors and principal shareholders beneficially owned approximately 73% of our common stock, including warrants and options that are exercisable within 60 days of such date and assuming full conversion of the Series A preferred stock and June 2011 warrants to be acquired by such persons in connection with the June 2011 financing. As a result, if they act in concert, they could control matters requiring approval by our shareholders, including the election of directors, and could have the ability to prevent or cause a corporate transaction, even if other shareholders oppose such action. Also, our charter permits our shareholders to act by written consent. This concentration of voting power could also have the effect of delaying, deterring, or preventing a change of control or other business combination, which could cause our stock price to decline.

Provisions in our articles of incorporation, our bylaws and Florida law could make it more difficult for a third party to acquire us, discourage a takeover and adversely affect existing shareholders.

Our articles of incorporation, our bylaws and the Florida Business Corporation Act contain provisions that may have the effect of making more difficult, delaying, or deterring attempts by others to obtain control of our company, even when these attempts may be in the best interests of our shareholders. These include provisions limiting the shareholders' powers to remove directors. Our articles of incorporation also authorize our board of directors, without shareholder approval, to issue one or more series of preferred stock, which could have voting and conversion rights that adversely affect or dilute the voting power of the holders of our common stock, such as our Series A preferred stock. Florida law also imposes conditions on certain "affiliated transactions" with "interested shareholders."

These provisions and others that could be adopted in the future could deter unsolicited takeovers or delay or prevent changes in our control or management, including transactions in which shareholders might otherwise receive a premium for their shares over then current market prices. These provisions may also limit the ability of shareholders to approve transactions that they may deem to be in their best interests.

Our shareholders may experience substantial dilution as a result of the conversion of Series A preferred stock, the exercise of options and warrants to purchase our common stock, or due to anti-dilution provisions relating to any on the foregoing.

As of July 29, 2011, we have outstanding or have entered into agreements to issue approximately 7,127 shares of Series A preferred stock which may convert into 23,442,736 shares of our common stock, not including shares of common stock issuable as dividends on the Series A preferred stock, and June 2011 warrants to purchase 11,721,373 shares of our common stock. Also, as of June 28, 2011, we have reserved 12,000,000 shares of our common stock for issuance upon the exercise of options granted or available to be granted pursuant to our stock option plan, all of which may be granted in the future. The conversion of the Series A preferred stock and the exercise of these options and warrants will result in dilution to our existing shareholders and could have a material adverse effect on our stock price. The conversion price of the Series A preferred stock and certain warrants are also subject to certain anti-dilution adjustments.

We are required to pay liquidated damages to the holders of our Series A preferred stock if we fail to timely register for resale the shares of our common stock issuable upon conversion of the Series A preferred stock and exercise of the June 2011 warrants issued in our June 2011 financing, which liquidated damages could adversely affect our results of operations.

We are required to register with the SEC for resale the shares of our common stock issuable upon conversion of the Series A preferred stock and exercise of the June 2011 warrants issued in our June 2011 financing. If we fail to timely register such shares of common stock for resale, we will be required to pay monthly liquidated damages to the holders of such Series A preferred stock in an amount equal to 1.0% of the subscription amount paid by such holders, up to a maximum of 3.0% such subscription amount. The payment of such liquidated damages could have an adverse effect on our results of operations.

CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain matters discussed in this prospectus and the information incorporated by reference herein contain "forward-looking statements" for purposes of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Act, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act. In some cases, you can identify these forward-looking statements by the use of words such as "may," "will," "should," "anticipates," "believes," "expects," "plans," "future," "intends," "could," "estimate," "predict," "potential," "continue," or the negative of these terms o similar expressions. These forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance. These forward-looking statements are made based on expectations and beliefs concerning future events affecting us and are subject to uncertainties, risks and factors relating to our operations and business environments, all of which are difficult to predict and many of which are beyond our control, that could cause our actual results to differ materially from those matters expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements. These risks and other factors include those listed under "Risk Factors" beginning on page 3 and as follows:

·our history of losses and expectation of further losses;

·the effect of poor operating results on our company;

·the adequacy of our cash resources and our ability to raise additional capital;

our ability to expand our operations in both new and existing markets and our ability to develop or acquire new brands:

·our relationships with and our dependency on our distributors;

the impact of supply shortages and alcohol and packaging costs in general, as well as our dependency on a limited number of suppliers and inventory requirements;

the success of our sales and marketing activities:

economic and political conditions generally, including the current recessionary economic environment and concurrent market instability;

·the effect of competition in our industry;

• negative publicity surrounding our products or the consumption of beverage alcohol products in general;

·our ability to acquire and/or maintain brand recognition and acceptance;

·trends in consumer tastes;

·our and our strategic partners' abilities to protect trademarks and other proprietary information;

·the impact of litigation;

the impact of currency exchange rate fluctuations and devaluations on our revenues, sales and overall financial results;

·our executive officers, directors and principal shareholders own a substantial portion of our voting stock; and

•the impact of federal, state, local or foreign government regulations.

Except for ongoing obligations to disclose material information as required by federal securities laws, we undertake no obligation to publicly release any revisions to any forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date hereof or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events. All of the above factors are difficult to predict, contain uncertainties that may materially affect our actual results and may be beyond our control. New factors emerge from time to time, and it is not possible for our management to predict all such factors or to assess the effect of each factor on our business.

Although we believe that the assumptions underlying the forward-looking statements contained or incorporated by reference herein are reasonable, any of the assumptions could be inaccurate, and therefore any of these statements included in this document or in the documents incorporated by reference may prove to be inaccurate. In light of the significant uncertainties inherent in the forward-looking statements included in this document, the inclusion of this information should not be regarded as a representation by us or by any other person that the results or conditions described in such statements or our objectives and plans will be achieved.

USE OF PROCEEDS

We will not receive any proceeds from the sale of the resale shares covered by this prospectus, but we will receive proceeds from the sale of shelf securities and any cash exercise of the June 2011 warrants. Except as may be otherwise set forth in any prospectus supplement accompanying this prospectus, we will use the net proceeds we receive from sales of shelf securities and the proceeds received from the exercise of the June 2011 warrants, if any, under which some of the resale shares are issuable, for working capital and other general corporate purposes. Pending these uses, the net proceeds may also be temporarily invested in short-term securities.

SELLING SECURITYHOLDERS

On June 8, 2011, we entered into agreements with the selling securityholders named below relating to a private placement of an aggregate of approximately \$7.1 million of Series A preferred stock and June 2011 warrants to purchase 50% of the number of shares of our common stock issuable upon conversion of such Series A preferred stock. For more information, see "Summary—Private Placement" above. The issuance of Series A preferred stock and June 2011 warrants to certain selling securityholders who are directors, officers and other affiliates of ours is subject to shareholder approval of such issuance in accordance with the rules and regulations of the NYSE Amex. We have undertaken to obtain such shareholder approval by the 150th calendar day following the date of the private placement and the holders of approximately 41.4% of our outstanding common stock have entered into irrevocable agreements to vote their shares of common stock in connection with the transactions. The shares of common stock issuable to the selling securityholders who are directors, officers and other affiliates of ours are being registered for resale under this prospectus because such selling securityholders are irrevocably bound to purchase a fixed dollar amount of Series A preferred stock and June 2011 warrants for a set per share purchase price following shareholder approval, if such shareholder approval is obtained.

The shares being offered by the selling securityholders as set forth in the table below are comprised of (a) shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of their shares of Series A preferred stock, referred to below as "offered conversion shares," (b) shares of common stock issuable as dividends on their shares of Series A preferred stock assuming the Series A preferred stock is held for at least three years, referred to below as "future dividend shares," and (c) shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of their June 2011 warrants, referred to below as "offered warrant shares."

Based on information provided by the selling securityholders, the table below sets forth certain information, as of July 29, 2011 unless otherwise noted, regarding the selling securityholders. Percentage ownership of common stock is based on 107,202,145 shares of our common stock outstanding as of July 29, 2011. Also, the table below assumes for calculating each selling securityholder's beneficial ownership, both prior to and after this offering, that options, warrants and convertible securities held by such securityholder, if any, that are exercisable or convertible within 60 days of July 29, 2011 and the Series A preferred stock and June 2011 warrants issued or to be issued to such selling securityholder have been exercised or converted and the shares underlying them added to the number of shares of our common stock deemed to be outstanding. The table below includes the conversion of accrued but unpaid interest on the exchange debt through September 12, 2011.

Because a selling securityholder may sell all, some or none of the shares of common stock it holds, and because the offering contemplated by this prospectus is not currently being underwritten, no estimate can be given as to the number of shares of common stock that will be held by a selling securityholder upon termination of the offering. The information set forth in the following table regarding the beneficial ownership after resale of shares is based upon the hypothetical assumption that the selling securityholder will sell all of the resale shares owned by it and covered by this prospectus.

Pursuant to the articles of designation for our Series A preferred stock, referred to as the articles of designation, and the terms of the June 2011 warrants, until shareholder approval of the June 2011 financing is obtained in accordance with the rules and regulations of the NYSE Amex, no holder of such securities is permitted to convert its shares of Series A preferred stock or exercise its June 2011 warrants to the extent that any such conversion or exercise would result in such holder's beneficial ownership, after giving effect to such conversion or exercise, of more than 19.99% of our common stock outstanding as of the date of the June 2011 financing. The information in the table below is presented assuming that such shareholder approval has been obtained.

	Shares Beneficially Owned Before Offering			Number of	Shares Beneficially Owned After Offering			
Name	Number of Shares	Percentage		Shares Offered ¹	Number of Shares	Percentage		
Alpha Capital Anstalt ²	3,011,514	2.7	%	3,011,514				
Mark E. Andrews III ³	5,023,858	4.6	%	1,867,371	3,156,487	2.9	%	
Mark E. Andrews IV ⁴	971,233	*		602,304	368,929	*		
Betts & Scholl, LLC ⁵	646,608	*		646,608				
Michael Brauser ⁶	301,152	*		301,152				

	Shares Bene Owned Befo Offering				Shares Beneficially Owned After Offering		
Name	Number of Shares	Percentage		Shares Offered ¹	Number of Shares	Percentage	
Cranshire Capital LP ⁷	406,564	*		406,564			
Elizabeth A. duPont ⁸	971,233	*		602,304	368,929	*	
Freestone Advantage Partners, LP ⁹	45,173	*		45,173			
Frost Gamma Investments Trust ¹⁰	43,665,200	34.2	%	20,532,845	23,132,355	18.1	%
John S. Glover ¹¹	672,088	*		301,152	370,936	*	
GRQ Consultants, Inc. 401(k) ¹²	1,204,607	1.1	%	1,204,607			
Horberg Enterprises Limited Partnership ¹³	1,995,144	1.8	%	903,456	1,091,688	1.0	%
Iroquois Master Fund Ltd. ¹⁴	301,152	*		301,152			
IVC Investments, LLLP ¹⁵	1,265,067	1.2	%	1,265,067			
David M. Knott ¹⁶	2,005,758	1.8	%	1,505,758	500,000	*	
Lafferty Ltd.17	7,115,561	6.6	%	615,746	6,499,815	6.0	%
Richard J. Lampen ¹⁸	2,427,720	2.2	%	1,566,219	861,501	*	
L. G. Rice ¹⁹	180,693	*		180,693			
Peter G. Schiff ²⁰	1,838,364	1.7	%	1,505,758	332,606	*	
SK Partners21	3,011,514	2.7	%	3,011,514			
Jacqueline Simkin Trust As Amended and Restated 12/16/2003 ²²	2,696,622	2.5	%	1,218,050	1,478,572	1.4	%
Alfred J. Small ²³	253,967	*		30,117	223,850	*	
Vector Group Ltd. ²⁴	12,727,217	11.7	%	1,298,641	11,428,576	10.5	%

^{*} Less than one percent.

¹ Represents, for each selling securityholder, its offered conversion shares, offered warrant shares and future dividend shares.

² Includes (a) 1,644,737 offered conversion shares issuable upon conversion of 500 shares of Series A preferred stock issued to the holder, (b) 544,408 future dividend shares issuable on such Series A preferred stock, and (c) 822,369 offered warrant shares. Konrad Ackermann has voting and investment power over the securities owned by the selling securityholder, as its director.

³ Includes (a) 690,908 offered conversion shares issuable upon conversion of 210.03562 shares of Series A preferred stock to be issued to the selling securityholder following shareholder approval, (b) 228,705 future dividend shares issuable on such Series A preferred stock, (c) 345,454 offered warrant shares issuable upon the exercise of June 2011 warrants to be issued to the selling securityholder following shareholder approval, (d) 1,183,079 shares of common stock held by Knappogue Corp., which is controlled by Mr. Andrews and his family, of which shares. Mr. Andrews

disclaims beneficial ownership of these except to the extent of his pecuniary interest therein, (e) 206,250 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of options exercisable within 60 days of July 29, 2011 and (f) shares of common stock held jointly by Mr. Andrews' with his wife. Also includes (a) 328,948 offered conversion shares issuable upon conversion of 100 shares of Series A preferred stock to be issued to UBS Financial Services Inc. not in its corporate capacity but solely as custodian of the individual retirement account of "Mark Edwin Andrews III" following shareholder approval, (b) 108,882 future dividend shares issuable on such Series A preferred stock, (c) 164,474 offered warrant shares issuable upon the exercise of June 2011 warrants to be issued to such holder following shareholder approval. UBS Financial Services Inc. is a registered broker-dealer. We have been advised that the shares of Series A preferred stock and June 2011 warrants to be issued to UBS Financial Services Inc. following shareholder approval were purchased in the ordinary course of business and, at the time of purchase, there were no agreements or understandings, directly or indirectly, with any person to distribute such securities. Does not include shares of common stock held by Mark E. Andrews IV or Elizabeth A. duPont, Mr. Andrews' children, of which the selling securityholder disclaims beneficial ownership. The selling securityholder disclaims beneficial ownership of the foregoing resale shares until shareholder approval of the issuance thereof in accordance with the rules and regulations of the NYSE Amex. The selling securityholder has served as our chairman of the board since December 2003 and served as our chief executive officer from December 2003 until November 2008.

⁴ Includes (a) 328,948 offered conversion shares issuable upon conversion of 100 shares of Series A preferred stock to be issued to the selling securityholder following shareholder approval, (b) 108,882 future dividend shares issuable on such Series A preferred stock, and (c) 164,474 offered warrant shares issuable upon the exercise of June 2011 warrants to be issued to the selling securityholder following shareholder approval. Does not include shares of common stock held by Mark E. Andrews III, the selling securityholder's father, of which the selling securityholder disclaims beneficial ownership. The selling securityholder disclaims beneficial ownership of the foregoing resale shares until shareholder approval of the issuance thereof in accordance with the rules and regulations of the NYSE Amex.

⁵ Includes (a) 353,139 offered conversion shares issuable upon conversion of 107.35423 shares of Series A preferred stock to be issued to the selling securityholder following shareholder approval, (b) 116,899 future dividend shares issuable on such Series A preferred stock, and (c) 176,570 offered warrant shares issuable upon the exercise of June 2011 warrants to be issued to the selling securityholder following shareholder approval. Does not include shares of common stock held by Mr. Dennis Scholl, one of our directors since September 2009 and an affiliate of the selling securityholder. The selling securityholder disclaims beneficial ownership of the foregoing resale shares until shareholder approval of the issuance thereof in accordance with the rules and regulations of the NYSE Amex. Mr. Scholl has voting and investment power over the securities owned by the selling securityholder, as its managing member.

⁶ Includes (a) 164,474 offered conversion shares issuable upon conversion of 50 shares of Series A preferred stock issued to the holder, (b) 54,441 future dividend shares issuable on such Series A preferred stock, and (c) 82,237 offered warrant shares.

⁷ Includes (a) 222,040 offered conversion shares issuable upon conversion of 67.50016 shares of Series A preferred stock issued to the holder, (b) 73,504 future dividend shares issuable on such Series A preferred stock, and (c) 111,020 offered warrant shares. Downsview Capital, Inc., referred to as Downsview, is the general partner of Cranshire Capital, L.P., referred to as Cranshire, and consequently has voting control and investment discretion over securities held by Cranshire. Mitchell P. Kopin, President of Downsview, has voting control over Downsview. As a result of the foregoing, each of Mr. Kopin and Downsview may be deemed to have beneficial ownership (as determined under Section 13(d) of the Exchange Act) of the shares of common stock beneficially owned by Cranshire.

⁸ Includes (a) 328,948 offered conversion shares issuable upon conversion of 100 shares of Series A preferred stock to be issued to the selling securityholder following shareholder approval, (b) 108,882 future dividend shares issuable on such Series A preferred stock, and (c) 164,474 offered warrant shares issuable upon the exercise of June 2011 warrants to be issued to the selling securityholder following shareholder approval. Does not include shares of common stock held by Mark E. Andrews III, the selling securityholder's father, of which the selling securityholder disclaims beneficial ownership. The selling securityholder disclaims beneficial ownership of the foregoing resale shares until shareholder approval of the issuance thereof in accordance with the rules and regulations of the NYSE Amex.

⁹ Includes (a) 24,670 offered conversion shares issuable upon conversion of 7.49968 shares of Series A preferred stock issued to the holder, (b) 8,168 future dividend shares issuable on such Series A preferred stock, and (c) 12,335 offered warrant shares. Downsview is the investment manager for a managed account of Freestone Advantage Partners, LP and consequently has voting control and investment discretion over securities held in such account. Mr. Kopin, President of Downsview, has voting control over Downsview. As a result, each of Mr. Kopin and Downsview may be deemed to have beneficial ownership (as determined under Section 13(d) of the Exchange Act) of the shares held in such account which are being registered hereunder.

¹⁰ Includes (a) 11,213,998 offered conversion shares issuable upon conversion of 3,409.0548 shares of Series A preferred stock to be issued to the selling securityholder following shareholder approval, (b) 3,711,847 future dividend shares issuable on such Series A preferred stock, and (c) 5,607,000 offered warrant shares issuable upon the exercise of June 2011 warrants to be issued to the selling securityholder following shareholder approval. Does not include shares of common stock held by Dr. Phillip Frost, who is the sole trustee of the selling securityholder and may be deemed to share beneficial ownership of the securities held by the selling securityholder with the selling securityholder. Frost Gamma Limited Partnership is the sole and exclusive beneficiary of the selling securityholder. Frost is one of two limited partners of Frost Gamma Limited Partnership. The general partner of Frost Gamma Limited Partnership is Frost Gamma, Inc. and the sole shareholder of Frost Gamma, Inc. is Frost-Nevada Corporation. Dr. Frost is also the sole shareholder of Frost-Nevada Corporation. The selling securityholder disclaims beneficial ownership of the foregoing resale shares until shareholder approval of the issuance thereof in accordance with the rules and regulations of the NYSE Amex. Dr. Frost is the chairman of the board of directors of Ladenburg Thalmann Financial Services, Inc., parent company of Ladenburg Thalmann & Co., Triad Advisors, Inc. and Investacorp Inc., each registered broker-dealers. We have been advised that the shares of Series A preferred stock and June 2011 warrants to be issued to Dr. Frost following shareholder approval were purchased in the ordinary course of

business and, at the time of purchase, there were no agreements or understandings, directly or indirectly, with any person to distribute such securities. Dr. Frost has served as one of our directors since October 2008 and is one of our principal shareholders.

¹¹ Includes (a) 164,474 offered conversion shares issuable upon conversion of 50 shares of Series A preferred stock to be issued to the selling securityholder following shareholder approval, (b) 54,441 future dividend shares issuable on such Series A preferred stock, (c) 82,237 offered warrant shares issuable upon the exercise of June 2011 warrants to be issued to the selling securityholder following shareholder approval, (d) 156,650 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of options exercisable within 60 days of July 29, 2011 and (e) 214,286 shares of restricted common stock. The selling securityholder disclaims beneficial ownership of the foregoing resale shares until shareholder approval of the issuance thereof in accordance with the rules and regulations of the NYSE Amex. The selling securityholder has served as our chief operating officer since October 2008 and previously served as our senior vice president — marketing from February 2008 to October 2008.

¹² Includes (a) 657,895 offered conversion shares issuable upon conversion of 200 shares of Series A preferred stock issued to the holder, (b) 217,764 future dividend shares issuable on such Series A preferred stock, and (c) 328,948 offered warrant shares. Barry Honig has voting and investment power over the securities owned by the selling securityholder, as its trustee.

¹³ Includes (a) 493,422 offered conversion shares issuable upon conversion of 150 shares of Series A preferred stock issued to the holder, (b) 163,323 future dividend shares issuable on such Series A preferred stock, and (c) 246,711 offered warrant shares. Howard Todd Horberg has voting and investment power over the securities owned by the selling securityholder, as its president.

¹⁴ Includes (a) 164,474 offered conversion shares issuable upon conversion of 50 shares of Series A preferred stock issued to the holder, (b) 54,441 future dividend shares issuable on such Series A preferred stock, and (c) 82,237 offered warrant shares. The selling securityholder has advised us that Iroquois Capital Management L.L.C., referred to as Iroquois Capital, is the investment manager of Iroquois Master Fund Ltd., referred to as IMF. Consequently, Iroquois Capital has voting control and investment discretion over securities held by IMF. As managing members of Iroquois Capital, Joshua Silverman and Richard Abbe make voting and investment decisions on behalf of Iroquois Capital in its capacity as investment manager to IMF. As a result of the foregoing, Mr. Silverman and Mr. Abbe may be deemed to have beneficial ownership of the securities held by IMF.

¹⁵ Includes (a) 690,908 offered conversion shares issuable upon conversion of 210.03562 shares of Series A preferred stock to be issued to the selling securityholder following shareholder approval, (b) 228,705 future dividend shares issuable on such Series A preferred stock and (c) 345,454 offered warrant shares issuable upon the exercise of June 2011 warrants to be issued to the selling securityholder following shareholder approval. Does not include shares of common stock beneficially owned by Mr. Glenn Halpryn, one of our directors since October 2008 and an affiliate of the selling securityholder. The selling securityholder disclaims beneficial ownership of the foregoing resale shares until shareholder approval of the issuance thereof in accordance with the rules and regulations of the NYSE Amex. Mr. Halpryn is the president and a director of United Security Corporation, a registered broker-dealer. We

have been advised that the shares of Series A preferred stock and June 2011 warrants to be issued to the selling securityholder following shareholder approval were purchased in the ordinary course of business and, at the time of purchase, there were no agreements or understandings, directly or indirectly, with any person to distribute such securities.

¹⁶ Includes (a) 822,369 offered conversion shares issuable upon conversion of 250 shares of Series A preferred stock issued to the holder, (b) 272,204 future dividend shares issuable on such Series A preferred stock, and (c) 411,185 offered warrant shares.

¹⁷ Includes (a) 336,284 offered conversion shares issuable upon conversion of 102.23014 shares of Series A preferred stock to be issued to the selling securityholder following shareholder approval, (b) 111,320 future dividend shares issuable on such Series A preferred stock, and (c) 168,142 offered warrant shares issuable upon the exercise of June 2011 warrants to be issued to the selling securityholder following shareholder approval. The selling securityholder disclaims beneficial ownership of the foregoing resale shares until shareholder approval of the issuance thereof in accordance with the rules and regulations of the NYSE Amex. The selling securityholder is one of our principal shareholders.

¹⁸ Includes (a) 855,382 offered conversion shares issuable upon conversion of 260.03562 shares of Series A preferred stock to be issued to the selling securityholder following shareholder approval, (b) 283,146 future dividend shares issuable on such Series A preferred stock, (c) 427,691 offered warrant shares issuable upon the exercise of June 2011 warrants to be issued to the selling securityholder following shareholder approval, and (d) 600,000 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of options exercisable within 60 days of July 29, 2011. The selling securityholder disclaims beneficial ownership of the foregoing resale shares until shareholder approval of the issuance thereof in accordance with the rules and regulations of the NYSE Amex. The selling securityholder is the president and chief executive officer and a member of the board of directors of Ladenburg Thalmann Financial Services, Inc., parent company of Ladenburg Thalmann & Co., Triad Advisors, Inc. and Investacorp Inc., each registered broker-dealers. We have been advised that the shares of Series A preferred stock and June 2011 warrants to be issued to the selling securityholder following shareholder approval were purchased in the ordinary course of business and, at the time of purchase, there were no agreements or understandings, directly or indirectly, with any person to distribute such securities. The selling securityholder has served as our president and chief executive officer and as one of our directors since October 2008.

¹⁹ Includes (a) 98,685 offered conversion shares issuable upon conversion of 30 shares of Series A preferred stock issued to the holder, (b) 32,665 future dividend shares issuable on such Series A preferred stock, and (c) 49,343 offered warrant shares.

²⁰ Includes (a) 822,369 offered conversion shares issuable upon conversion of 250 shares of Series A preferred stock issued to the holder, (b) 272,204 future dividend shares issuable on such Series A preferred stock, and (c) 411,185 offered warrant shares.

²¹ Includes (a) 1,644,737 offered conversion shares issuable upon conversion of 500 shares of Series A preferred stock issued to the holder, (b) 544,408 future dividend shares issuable on such Series A preferred stock, and (c) 822,369 offered warrant shares. Peter G. Schiff has voting and investment power over the securities owned by the selling securityholder, as its general partner.

²² Includes (a) 328,948 offered conversion shares issuable upon conversion of 100 shares of Series A preferred stock issued to the holder, (b) 108,882 future dividend shares issuable on such Series A preferred stock, (c) 164,474 offered warrant shares. Also includes, (a) 336,284 offered conversion shares issuable upon conversion of 102.23014 shares of Series A preferred stock to be issued to the selling securityholder following shareholder approval, (b) 111,320 future dividend shares issuable on such Series A preferred stock, and (c) 168,142 offered warrant shares issuable upon the exercise of June 2011 warrants to be issued to the selling securityholder following shareholder approval; the selling securityholder disclaims beneficial ownership of the foregoing resale shares until shareholder approval of the issuance thereof in accordance with the rules and regulations of the NYSE Amex. Jacqueline Simkin has voting and investment power over the securities owned by the selling securityholder, as its trustee.

²³ Includes (a) 16,448 offered conversion shares issuable upon conversion of 5 shares of Series A preferred stock to be issued to the selling securityholder following shareholder approval, (b) 5,445 future dividend shares issuable on such Series A preferred stock, (c) 8,224 offered warrant shares issuable upon the exercise of June 2011 warrants to be issued to the selling securityholder following shareholder approval, (d) 73,850 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of options exercisable within 60 days of July 29, 2011 and (e) 150,000 shares of restricted common stock. The selling securityholder disclaims beneficial ownership of the foregoing resale shares until shareholder approval of the issuance thereof in accordance with the rules and regulations of the NYSE Amex. The selling securityholder has served as our senior vice president, chief financial officer, secretary and treasurer since January 2009 and previously served as our senior vice president and chief financial officer from November 2007 until January 2009.

²⁴ Includes (a) 709,247 offered conversion shares issuable upon conversion of 215.61096 shares of Series A preferred stock to be issued to the selling securityholder following shareholder approval, (b) 234,770 future dividend shares issuable on such Series A preferred stock, and (c) 354,624 offered warrant shares issuable upon the exercise of June 2011 warrants to be issued to the selling securityholder following shareholder approval. The selling securityholder disclaims beneficial ownership of the foregoing resale shares until shareholder approval of the issuance thereof in accordance with the rules and regulations of the NYSE Amex. The selling securityholder is one of our principal shareholders.

DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK

The following summarizes certain material terms and provisions of our common stock and our Series A preferred stock. It does not purport to be complete, however, and is qualified in its entirety by reference to Florida law and by the actual terms and provisions contained in our articles of incorporation, as amended, and bylaws.

Overview - Authorized and Outstanding Shares

As of July 29, 2011, under our articles of incorporation, as amended, we had the authority to issue:

·225,000,000 shares of common stock, par value \$0.01 per share; and

25,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value \$0.01 per share, which are issuable in series on terms determined by our Board of Directors.

As of July 29, 2011:

·107,202,145 shares of our common stock were outstanding; and

Approximately 7,127 shares of our Series A preferred stock were outstanding or we have entered into agreements to issue such shares.

The following descriptions set forth certain general terms and provisions of our common stock and Series A preferred stock to which a supplement to this prospectus may relate. The particular terms of the shares of common stock and Series A preferred stock being offered and the extent to which the general provisions may apply will be described in the applicable supplement to this prospectus. If so indicated in the applicable supplement to this prospectus, the terms of any series of shares of capital stock may differ from the terms set forth below, except with respect to those terms required by our articles of incorporation, as amended, and bylaws.

Rights of Our Common Stock

<u>Preemptive Rights</u>. The holders of our common stock do not have preemptive rights to purchase or subscribe for any stock or other securities of ours.

Voting Rights. Each outstanding share of our common stock is entitled to one vote per share.

<u>Dividends</u>. Holders of our common stock are entitled to receive dividends or other distributions when and if declared by our Board of Directors. The right of our Board of Directors to declare dividends, however, is subject to any rights of the holders of other classes of our capital stock and the availability of sufficient funds under Florida law to pay dividends.

<u>Liquidation Rights</u>. In the event of the liquidation of our company, subject to the rights, if any, of the holders of other classes of our capital stock, the holders of our common stock are entitled to receive any of our assets available for distribution to our shareholders ratably in proportion to the number of shares held by them.

<u>Listing</u>. We list our common stock on the NYSE Amex under the symbol "ROX."

Additionally, please see "Description of Capital Stock—Material Provisions of our Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws."

Rights of Our Preferred Stock

Series A Preferred Stock

<u>Dividends</u>. Holders of Series A preferred stock are entitled to receive cumulative dividends thereon at the rate per share (as a percentage of the stated value of \$1,000 per share, referred to as the stated value) of 10% per annum (calculated on the basis of a 360-day year, consisting of twelve 30 calendar day periods), whether or not declared by the Board of Directors, which dividends are payable upon conversion of the Series A preferred stock or upon a liquidation (as defined below) (with respect only to Series A preferred stock not previously converted) in an amount of duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable shares of common stock (the dollar amount to be paid in shares of common stock referred to as the dividend share amount) equal to the quotient of (x) the applicable dividend share amount divided by (y) the conversion price (as defined below).

<u>Voting Rights</u>. The Series A preferred stock will be voted equally with the shares of common stock and not as a separate class, at any annual or special meeting of shareholders of our company, and may act by written consent in the same manner as the common stock, in either case upon the following basis: each holder of Series A preferred stock will be entitled to the number of votes equal to the whole number of shares of common stock into which such holder's aggregate number of shares of Series A preferred stock are convertible pursuant to the articles of designation immediately after the close of business on the record date fixed for such meeting or the effective date of such written consent, subject to the issuable maximum (as defined below). As long as any shares of Series A preferred stock are outstanding, we may not, without the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the then outstanding shares of the Series A preferred stock, (i) alter or change adversely the powers, preferences or rights given to the Series A preferred stock or alter or amend the articles of designation, (ii) authorize or create any class of stock ranking as to dividends, redemption or distribution of assets upon a liquidation senior to the Series A preferred stock, (iii) amend our articles of incorporation or other charter documents in any manner that adversely affects any rights of the holders of Series A preferred stock, (iv) increase the number of authorized shares of Series A preferred stock, or (v) enter into any agreement with respect to any of the foregoing; provided, however, that as long as any shares of Series A preferred stock are outstanding, we may not alter or amend the anti-dilution provisions of the articles of designation without the affirmative vote of the holders of 67% of the then outstanding shares of Series A preferred stock.

<u>Rank</u>. With respect to distributions upon liquidation, the Series A preferred stock ranks senior to all classes of our common stock and to each other class of our capital stock existing now or hereafter created that are not specifically designated as ranking senior to the Series A preferred stock. We may not issue any capital stock that is senior to the Series A preferred stock unless such issuance is approved by the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the then outstanding shares of the Series A preferred stock voting separately as a class.

<u>Liquidation Preference</u>. Upon any liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of our company, whether voluntary or involuntary, referred to as a liquidation, the holders of Series A preferred stock will be entitled to receive out of the assets, whether capital or surplus, of our company an amount equal to the stated value, plus any accrued and unpaid dividends thereon and any other fees then due and owing thereon under the articles of designation, for each share of Series A preferred stock before any distribution or payment shall be made to the holders of any junior securities, and if the assets of our company are insufficient to pay in full such amounts, then the entire assets to be distributed to the holders of Series A preferred stock will be ratably distributed among such holders in accordance with the respective amounts that would be payable on such shares if all amounts payable thereon were paid in full.

Conversion. Each share of Series A preferred stock is convertible, at any time and from time to time at the option of the holder thereof, into that number of shares of common stock (subject to the limitations set forth in the articles of designation) determined by dividing the stated value of such share of Series A preferred stock by the conversion price, which is initially \$0.304, referred to as the conversion price, subject to adjustment as provided in the articles of designation, including in the event that, during the threshold period (as defined in the articles of designation), we sell or grant any option to purchase or sell or grant any right to reprice, or otherwise dispose of or issue (or announce any sale, grant or any option to purchase or other disposition), any common stock or common stock equivalents (as defined in the articles of designation) entitling any person to acquire shares of common stock at an effective price per

share that is lower than the then conversion price, referred to as a dilutive issuance. The conversion price is based on the average closing price of our common stock as reported on the NYSE Amex for the five trading days preceding the execution of the three Securities Purchase Agreements and the Exchange Agreement, referred to collectively as the Purchase Agreements, which were entered into on June 8, 2011. We may not effect any conversion of the Series A preferred stock, and a holder will not have the right to convert any portion of the Series A preferred stock, to the extent that, after giving effect to the conversion, such holder (together with such holder's affiliates, and any persons acting as a group together with such holder or any of such holder's affiliates) would beneficially own in excess of 4.99% of the number of shares of our common stock outstanding immediately after giving effect to the issuance of shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of the Series A preferred stock held by the applicable holder, referred to as the beneficial ownership limitation. A holder, upon not less than 61 days' prior written notice to us, may increase or decrease the beneficial ownership limitation applicable to its Series A preferred stock; any such increase or decrease will not be effective until the 61st day after such notice is delivered to us and will only apply to such holder and no other holder; provided, however, that the beneficial ownership limitation will not apply to any holder whose beneficial ownership of common stock exceeded the beneficial ownership limitation as of the date of issuance of such holder's Series A preferred stock.

Issuance Limitation. Until such time as we have obtained the approval of its shareholders required by the applicable rules and regulations of the NYSE Amex with respect to the transactions contemplated by the Purchase Agreements, we may not issue, upon conversion of the Series A preferred stock, a number of shares of common stock which, when aggregated with any shares of common stock issued on or after the date of the Purchase Agreements and prior to such conversion (i) in connection with any conversion of Series A preferred stock issued pursuant to the Purchase Agreements and (ii) in connection with the exercise of any June 2011 warrants issued pursuant to the Purchase Agreements would exceed 19.99% of the shares of common stock outstanding as of the date of the Purchase Agreements (subject to adjustment for forward and reverse stock splits, recapitalizations and the like) (such number of shares referred to as the issuable maximum. Each holder of Series A preferred stock shall be entitled to a percentage of the issuable maximum equal to the quotient obtained by dividing (x) the original stated value of such holder's Series A preferred stock by (y) the aggregate stated value of all Series A preferred stock issued on the original issue date (as defined in the articles of designation). In addition, each holder may allocate its pro-rata portion of the issuable maximum among Series A preferred stock and June 2011 warrants held by it in its sole discretion.

Forced Conversion. If (i) there is an effective registration statement covering the shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of the Series A preferred stock or all such shares may be sold pursuant to Rule 144 without the requirement for us to be in compliance with Rule 144(c)(1), (ii) the average daily volume of the common shares exceeds \$100,000 per trading day and (iii) the VWAP (as defined in the articles of designation) for at least 20 trading days during any 30 consecutive trading day period exceeds \$0.76 (subject to adjustment), we may convert all or any portion of the outstanding Series A preferred stock into shares of common stock. To the extent that a forced conversion would result in a holder exceeding the beneficial ownership limitation, then the shares of common stock issuable to such holder will be held in abeyance and will not be distributed to such holder for a period of 71 days following the effective date of the notice regarding the forced conversion, or such time during such 71-day period, if ever, as the distribution of such shares would not result in the holder exceeding the beneficial ownership limitation. In the event of a fundamental transaction (as defined in the articles of designation), we may convert all of the Series A preferred stock plus all accrued but unpaid dividends thereon into common stock concurrently with the consummation of such fundamental transaction.

Preferred Stock

We are authorized to issue preferred stock with such designation, rights and preferences as may be determined from time to time by our Board of Directors. Accordingly, our Board of Directors is empowered, without shareholder approval, to issue preferred stock with dividend, liquidation, conversion, voting or other rights which could adversely affect the voting power or other rights of the holders of our common stock and, in certain instances, could adversely affect the market price of this stock. In the event of issuance, the preferred stock could be utilized, under certain circumstances, as a method of discouraging, delaying or preventing a change in control of our company or making removal of management more difficult. Please see "Description of Capital Stock—Material Provisions of our Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws."

Material Provisions of our Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws

Our articles of incorporation, as amended, and bylaws, contain provisions that could discourage, delay or prevent a tender offer or takeover attempt at a price which many shareholders may find attractive. The existence of these provisions could limit the price that investors might otherwise pay in the future for shares of our common stock.

Articles of Incorporation, as Amended, and Bylaws

<u>Blank Check Preferred Stock</u>. As noted above, our preferred stock could be issued quickly and utilized, under certain circumstances, as a method of discouraging, delaying or preventing a change in control of our company or make removal of management more difficult. As of the date of the prospectus, we have issued or have entered into agreements to issue approximately 7,127 shares of our Series A preferred stock.

<u>Election of Directors</u>. Our Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation provides for the filling of vacancies occurring on the Board of Directors by certain votes of the remaining directors. These provisions may discourage a third party from voting to remove incumbent directors and simultaneously gaining control of the Board of Directors by filling the vacancies created by that removal with its own nominees.

<u>Indemnification</u>. Our articles of incorporation, as amended, and bylaws provide for indemnification of our officers and directors to the fullest extent allowed by applicable law. We have also obtained liability insurance for our officers and directors in the amount of \$10.0 million. Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act may be permitted to directors, officers or persons controlling us under the provisions that we describe above or otherwise, we have been informed that in the opinion of the SEC, this indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act and is therefore unenforceable.

Transfer Agent and Registrar

The transfer agent and registrar for our common stock is Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company.

Florida Anti-Takeover Statute

As a Florida corporation, we are subject to certain anti-takeover provisions that apply to public corporations under Florida law. Pursuant to Section 607.0901 of the Florida Business Corporation Act, or the Florida Act, a publicly held Florida corporation may not engage in a broad range of business combinations or other extraordinary corporate transactions with an interested shareholder without the approval of the holders of two-thirds of the voting shares of the corporation (excluding shares held by the interested shareholder), unless:

the transaction is approved by a majority of disinterested directors before the shareholder becomes an interested shareholder;

the interested shareholder has owned at least 80% of the corporation's outstanding voting shares for at least five years preceding the announcement date of any such business combination;

the interested shareholder is the beneficial owner of at least 90% of the outstanding voting shares of the corporation, exclusive of shares acquired directly from the corporation in a transaction not approved by a majority of the disinterested directors; or

·the consideration paid to the holders of the corporation's voting stock is at least equal to certain fair price criteria.

An interested shareholder is defined as a person who together with affiliates and associates beneficially owns more than 10% of a corporation's outstanding voting shares. We have not made an election in our articles of incorporation, as amended, to opt out of Section 607.0901.

In addition, we are subject to Section 607.0902 of the Florida Act which prohibits the voting of shares in a publicly held Florida corporation that are acquired in a control share acquisition unless (i) our Board of Directors approved such acquisition prior to its consummation or (ii) after such acquisition, in lieu of prior approval by our Board of Directors, the holders of a majority of the corporation's voting shares, exclusive of shares owned by officers of the corporation, employee directors or the acquiring party, approve the granting of voting rights as to the shares acquired in the control share acquisition. A control share acquisition is defined as an acquisition that immediately thereafter entitles the acquiring party to 20% or more of the total voting power in an election of directors.

DESCRIPTION OF WARRANTS

The following summary describes generally the terms of warrants that we may offer from time to time in one or more series. The specific terms of a series of warrants will be described in the applicable prospectus supplement relating to that series of warrants along with any general provisions applicable to that series of warrants. The following description of the warrants, and any description of the warrants in a prospectus supplement, may not be complete and is subject to, and qualified in its entirety by reference to, the underlying warrant agreement, which we will file with the SEC at or prior to the time of the sale of the warrants. You should refer to, and read this summary together with, the warrant agreement and the applicable prospectus supplement to review the terms of a particular series of our common or preferred stock that may be important to you. You can obtain copies of any form of warrant agreement or other agreement pursuant to which the warrants are issued by following the directions described under the caption "Where You Can Find Additional Information."

We may issue warrants to purchase shares of our common stock. We may issue warrants independently or together with any other securities, and the warrants may be attached to, or separate from, any other securities. Each series of warrants to be issued will be issued under a separate warrant agreement between us and a warrant agent specified in the related prospectus supplement. The warrant agent will act solely as our agent in connection with the warrants of a series and will not assume any obligation or relationship of agency or trust for or with holders or beneficial owners of the warrants.

The applicable prospectus supplement will describe the terms of any warrants, including the following:

·the title of the warrants;

·the aggregate number of the warrants;

•the price or prices at which the warrants will be issued and sold;

•the designation, number and terms of the shares of common stock purchasable upon exercise of the warrants;

the designation and terms of the other securities, if any, with which the warrants are issued and the number of warrants issued with each such security;

·the price at which the common stock purchasable upon exercise of the warrants may be purchased;

•the date on which the right to exercise the warrants shall commence and the date on which that right will expire;

·whether the warrants will be issued in registered form or bearer form;

·if applicable, the minimum or maximum amount of the warrants which may be exercised at any one time;

if applicable, the date on and after which the warrants and the related underlying securities will be separately transferable;

·information with respect to book-entry procedures, if any;

·if applicable, a summary of the United States federal income tax considerations; and

any other terms of the warrants, including terms, procedures and limitations relating to the exchange and exercise of the warrants.

Warrant certificates may be exchanged for new warrant certificates of different denominations, and warrants may be exercised at the corporate trust office of the warrant agent or any other office indicated in the applicable prospectus supplement. Prior to the exercise of their warrants, holders of warrants will not have any of the rights of holders of the respective underlying securities purchasable upon exercise of the warrants.

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

We may sell the shelf securities to one or more underwriters or broker-dealers for public offering and sale by them, or we may sell the shelf securities to investors directly or through agents. The applicable prospectus supplement will set forth the terms of the offering and the method of distribution and will identify any firms acting as underwriters, broker-dealers or agents in connection with the offering, including:

·the name or names of any underwriters;

·the purchase price of the shelf securities;

any underwriting discounts and other items constituting underwriters' compensation;

·any initial public offering price and the net proceeds we will receive from such sale;

·any discounts or concessions allowed or reallowed or paid to broker-dealers; and

· any securities exchange or market on which the shelf securities offered in the prospectus supplement may be listed.

We may distribute the shelf securities from time to time in one or more transactions at a fixed price or prices, which may be changed, or at prices determined as the prospectus supplement specifies, including in "at-the-market" offerings. We may sell the shelf securities through a rights offering, forward contracts or similar arrangements. Any common stock sold pursuant to this prospectus and applicable prospectus supplement, will be approved for trading, upon notice of issuance, on the NYSE Amex.

Each selling securityholder and any of their pledgees, assignees and successors-in-interest may, from time to time, sell any or all of their resale shares covered hereby on the NYSE Amex or any other stock exchange, market or trading facility on which the shares are traded or in private transactions. These sales may be at fixed or negotiated prices. A selling securityholder may use any one or more of the following methods when selling resale shares:

·ordinary brokerage transactions and transactions in which the broker-dealer solicits purchasers;

block trades in which the broker-dealer will attempt to sell the shares as agent but may position and resell a portion of the block as principal to facilitate the transaction;

·purchases by a broker-dealer as principal and resale by the broker-dealer for its account;

·an exchange distribution in accordance with the rules of the applicable exchange;

·privately negotiated transactions;

settlement of short sales entered into after the effective date of the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part;

in transactions through broker-dealers that agree with the selling securityholder to sell a specified number of such shares at a stipulated price per share;

through the writing or settlement of options or other hedging transactions, whether through an options exchange or otherwise;

·a combination of any such methods of sale; or

· any other method permitted pursuant to applicable law.

The selling securityholder may also sell shares under Rule 144 under the Securities Act, if available, rather than under this prospectus.

Any underwriting discounts or other compensation which we or the selling securityholders pay to underwriters or agents in connection with the offering of the shelf securities or the resale shares, as applicable, and any discounts, concessions or commissions which underwriters allow to broker-dealers, will be set forth in the prospectus supplement. Underwriters and the selling securityholders may sell the shelf securities and resale shares, as applicable, to or through broker-dealers (and broker-dealers engaged by the selling securityholders may arrange for other brokers-dealers to participate in sales), and such broker-dealers may receive compensation in the form of discounts, concessions or commissions from the underwriters and the selling securityholders and commissions from the purchasers for whom they may act as agents in amounts to be negotiated, but, except as set forth in a supplement to this prospectus, in the case of an agency transaction not in excess of a customary brokerage commission in compliance with FINRA Rule 2440; and in the case of a principal transaction a markup or markdown in compliance with FINRA IM-2440.

The selling securityholders and any underwriters, broker-dealers or agents that are involved in the distribution of the shelf securities and the resale shares, as applicable, may be deemed to be "underwriters" within the meaning of the Securities Act in connection with such distributions. In such event, any discounts or commissions they receive and any profit on the resale of our securities they realize may be deemed to be underwriting commissions or discounts under the Securities Act. Any such underwriter or agent will be identified, and any such compensation received from us, will be described in the applicable supplement to this prospectus. Unless otherwise set forth in the supplement to this prospectus relating thereto, the obligations of the underwriters or agents to purchase our shelf securities will be subject to conditions precedent and the underwriters will be obligated to purchase all our offered shelf securities if any are purchased. The public offering price and any discounts or concessions allowed or reallowed or paid to broker-dealers may be changed from time to time. Each selling securityholder has informed us that it does not have any written or oral agreement or understanding, directly or indirectly, with any person to distribute the common stock. In no event shall any broker-dealer receive fees, commissions and markups in connection with selling the resale shares that, in the aggregate, would exceed eight percent (8%).

Because the selling securityholders may be deemed to be "underwriters" within the meaning of the Securities Act, they will be subject to the prospectus delivery requirements of the Securities Act including Rule 172 thereunder. In addition, any resale shares covered by this prospectus which qualify for sale pursuant to Rule 144 under the Securities Act may be sold under Rule 144 rather than under this prospectus. The selling securityholders have advised us that there is no underwriter or coordinating broker acting in connection with the proposed sale of the resale shares by the selling securityholders.

Underwriters and their controlling persons, broker-dealers and agents may be entitled, under agreements entered into with us, to indemnification against and contribution toward specific civil liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act. We have agreed to indemnify the selling securityholders against certain losses, claims, damages and liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act. We are also required to pay certain fees and expenses incurred by us incident to the registration of the resale shares.

The shelf securities being offered under this prospectus, other than our common stock, will be new issues of securities with no established trading market and unless otherwise specified in the applicable prospectus supplement. It has not presently been established whether the underwriters, if any, as identified in a prospectus supplement, will make a market in the shelf securities. If the underwriters make a market in the shelf securities, the market making may be discontinued at any time without notice. We cannot provide any assurance as to the liquidity of the trading market for the shelf securities.

An underwriter may engage in over-allotment, stabilizing transactions, short covering transactions and penalty bids in accordance with securities laws. Over-allotment involves sales in excess of the offering size, which creates a short position. Stabilizing transactions permit bidders to purchase the underlying security so long as the stabilizing bids do not exceed a specified maximum. Short covering transactions involve purchases of the securities in the open market after the distribution is completed to cover short positions. Penalty bids permit the underwriters to reclaim a selling concession from a broker-dealer when the securities originally sold by the broker-dealer are purchased in a covering transaction to cover short positions. Those activities may cause the price of the securities to be higher than it would otherwise be. The underwriters may engage in these activities on any exchange or other market in which the securities may be traded. If commenced, the underwriters may discontinue these activities at any time. In connection with the sale of the common stock or interests therein, the selling securityholders may enter into hedging transactions with broker-dealers or other financial institutions, which may in turn engage in short sales of the common stock in the course of hedging the positions they assume. The selling securityholders may also sell shares of the common stock short and deliver these securities to close out their short positions, or loan or pledge the common stock to broker-dealers that in turn may sell these securities. The selling securityholders may also enter into option or other transactions with broker-dealers or other financial institutions or create one or more derivative securities which require the delivery to such broker-dealer or other financial institution of shares offered by this prospectus, which shares such broker-dealer or other financial institution may resell pursuant to this prospectus (as supplemented or amended to reflect such transaction).

Certain of the underwriters and their affiliates may be customers of, engage in transactions with, and perform services for, us and our subsidiaries in the ordinary course of business.

We agreed to keep this prospectus effective until the earlier of (i) the date on which the resale shares may be resold by the selling securityholders without registration and without regard to any volume or manner-of-sale limitations by reason of Rule 144, without the requirement for us to be in compliance with the current public information under Rule 144 under the Securities Act or any other rule of similar effect or (ii) all of the resale shares have been sold pursuant to this prospectus or Rule 144 under the Securities Act or any other rule of similar effect. The resale shares will be sold only through registered or licensed brokers or dealers if required under applicable state securities laws. In addition, in certain states, the shares of common stock covered hereby may not be sold unless they have been registered or qualified for sale in the applicable state or an exemption from the registration or qualification requirement is available and is complied with.

Under applicable rules and regulations under the Exchange Act, any person engaged in the distribution of the resale shares may not simultaneously engage in market making activities with respect to the common stock for the applicable restricted period, as defined in Regulation M, prior to the commencement of the distribution. In addition, the selling securityholders will be subject to applicable provisions of the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations thereunder, including Regulation M, which may limit the timing of purchases and sales of shares of common stock by the selling securityholders or any other person. We will make copies of this prospectus available to the selling securityholders and have informed them of the need to deliver a copy of this prospectus to each purchaser at or prior to the time of the sale (including by compliance with Rule 172 under the Securities Act).

LEGAL MATTERS

The legality of the securities offered by this prospectus has been or will be passed upon by Greenberg Traurig, P.A., Miami, Florida.

EXPERTS

EisnerAmper LLP (formerly Eisner LLP), an independent registered public accounting firm, has audited our consolidated financial statements incorporated in this prospectus by reference to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended March 31, 2011. Our consolidated financial statements have been so incorporated in reliance on the report of EisnerAmper LLP (formerly Eisner LLP), given on the authority of said firm as experts in accounting and auditing.

PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENTS

This prospectus provides you with a general description of the proposed offering of the shelf securities and resale shares. Each time that we or the selling securityholders sell shelf securities or resale shares under this prospectus, we will provide a prospectus supplement that will contain specific information about the terms of that offering. The prospectus supplement may add to, update, or change information contained in this prospectus and should be read as superseding this prospectus. You should read both this prospectus and any prospectus supplement together with additional information described under the heading "Where You Can Find Additional Information."

The prospectus supplement will describe the terms of any offering of shelf securities or resale shares, including the offering price to the public in that offering, the purchase price and net proceeds of that offering, and the other specific terms related to that offering of shelf securities or resale shares.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

We file annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC. Our SEC filings are available to the public over the Internet at the SEC's web site at http://www.sec.gov. You may also read and copy any document we file at the SEC's public reference room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information about the public reference room. Our SEC filings are also available at http://www.castlebrandsinc.com. We do not intend for information contained in our website, or those of our subsidiaries, to be a part of this prospectus.

INCORPORATION OF CERTAIN DOCUMENTS BY REFERENCE

The SEC allows us to incorporate by reference the information we file with it, which means that we can disclose important information to you by referring you to those documents. Any statement contained in a document incorporated by reference herein shall be deemed to be modified or superseded for purposes of this prospectus to the extent that a statement contained herein modifies or supersedes such statement. Any statement so modified or superseded shall not be deemed, except as so modified or superseded, to constitute a part of this prospectus. Any information that we file after the date of this prospectus with the SEC will automatically update and supersede the information contained in this prospectus. This prospectus incorporates by reference our documents listed below and any future filings we make with the SEC under Sections 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act (not including any information furnished under Item 2.02, 7.01 or 9.01 of Form 8-K and any other information that is identified as "furnished" rather than filed, which information is not incorporated by reference herein) until all of the shelf securities and resale shares are sold:

our annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2011 filed with the SEC on June 29, 2011 as amended on July 29, 2011;

our current reports on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 9, 2011, June 14, 2011, July 8, 2011 and July 27, 2011; and

the description of our common stock contained in Castle Delaware's registration statement on Form 8-A filed with the SEC on March 31, 2006 (File No. 001-32849), including any amendment or report filed for the purpose of updating such description.

We will provide without charge to each person, including any stockholder, to whom a prospectus is delivered, upon written or oral request of that person, a copy of any and all of the information that has been incorporated by reference in this prospectus (excluding exhibits unless specifically incorporated by reference into those documents). Requests should be directed to Castle Brands Inc., Attention: Investor Relations, 122 East 42nd Street, Suite 4700, New York, New York 10168 or by telephone at (646) 356-0200.

Edgar Filing: Castle Brands Inc - Form 424B5
CASTLE BRANDS INC.
\$6,000,000
Common Stock
PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT
BARRINGTON RESEARCH ASSOCIATES

November 14, 2013